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Directors, Secretary and Advisers

Ian Karkpatrick

Nen-Executive Chairman

lan Kirkpatnick, aged 635, 1s Non-Executive Chairman Following a career in consultancy, stockbroking and commerce, he
jomned Bank of Scotland and became a director 1n the banking division of Briish Linen Bank Limited, 1ts subsidiary He has
been a non-executive director or chairman of a number of private, publicly-quoted and public sector orgamsations  lan 1s
Chairman of Prime Estates Limited and 1s also a Non-Executive Director of Baronsmead VCT 4 Plc He was appointed
Chairman of Harvey Nash 1n January 1997

Albert Ellis

Chief Executive Officer

Albert Ellis, aged 46, 1s Chief Executive Officer and was appointed to the Board in February 2000, as Group Fmnance
Director He was previously a Finance Director with Hays Plc

Richard Ashcroft

Group Finance Director

Richard Ashcroft, aged 52, 15 Group Finance Director He was appoimted m Cctober 2005, having previously spent 20 years m
semor financial positions 1n a number of UK public companies, including Michael Page International Plc

Simon Wassall

European Managing Director

Simon Wassall, aged 47, was appomnted to the Board in October 2005 He has been with the Group since 1994 and 1s
responsible for the UK and European IT recnutment operations

Tom Crawford
Non-Executive Director
Tom Crawford, aged 59, 1s a Non-Executive Director He was previously Joint Managing Director and founder of the business

Gus Moore

Non-Executive Director

Gus Moore, aged 72, 1s a Non-Executive Director and was appomted 1n Apnil 1999 He was previcusly Managing Director of
Telephone Rentals Plc and then on the Board of Hong Kong Telecom and Managing Director of Hong Kong Telecom/CSL  He
has been Chairman and Non-Executive Director of a number of venture capital backed companies, matnly in the Telecoms and
Computer market sectors

Page 1




Directors

Ian Kirkpatnck
Albert Ellis
Richard Ashcroft
Simon Wassall
Gus Moore

Tom Crawford

Secretary
Richard Asheroft

Registered Office
13 Bruton Street
London W1J 6QA

Registered Number
3320790

Stockbrokers

Nunus Securities Limited
Cheapside House

138 Cheapside

London EC2V 6LH

Solicitors

Travers Smuth LLP
10 Snow Hill
London EC1A 2AL

Registrars

Equuut,

PO Box 4630

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN99 6QQ

Financial Advisers
DC Advisory Partners
60 Threadneedle Street
London EC2R 8HP

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
No | Embankment Place

London WC2N 6RH

Principal Bankers

Royal Bank of Scotland plc
36 St Andrew Square
Edinburgh EH2 2YB

Page 2




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

We faced extremely challenging conditions during the year The impact of the global financial crisis was felt across all of the
Group’s markets

The Group demonstrated 1ts resihence 1n the global recession and we are pleased that the revenue dechne, which was limited to
10% of turnover and 13% of gross profit, reflects an enhanced market share

Orgamsations across the world have implemented actions to reduce costs and conserve cash which has clearly benefited the
Group’s outsourcing business During the year, gross profit attnbutable to outsourcing increased by 34% from £9 6m to
£12 9m

The success of our broad portfolio of services in achieving greater resilience through diversification has been demonstrated
with the Group remawning profitable throughout the year, supported by the strength of our client relationships and quality of
delivery

Financial Results

Revenue for the year ended 31 January 2010 dechined by 10% to £376 2m (2009 £420 1m) Gross profit was 13% lower at
£60 4m (2009 £69 2m) with operating profit before non recurring items down 57% to £4 5Sm (2009 £10 4m) Profit before tax
and non-recurring items was 57% lower at £4 1m compared to £9 5m 1n 2009 Basic earmings per share were 1 09p (2009

9 00p)

Cash generated by operations was relatively strong at £5 8m, only 21% below last year’s £7 3m resulting 1n an increased net
cash position of £5 1m (2009 £4 5m) up 13% on the previous year

Dividend

The Group’s resilient trading and strong cash generation has resulted 1n the Board recommending a 13% increase 1n the final
dividend for the year to 1 35p (2009 1 20p) which will be paid on 16 July 2010 to shareholders on the register as at 25 June If
passed, this will take the total payout for the year to 2 2p (2009 2 Op), an increase of 10%

Strategy

Firstly, the Group’s overall strategy 1s to grow 1ts market share by broadening 1ts geographical presence both orgamically and
through bolt on acquisitions and leveraging us uuque portfolio of services by cross selling nto the Group’s client base Our
strategy to address the impact of economic downturns, 1s to enhance the efficiency of our operations even further, work with
clients across industry sectors, and spread the Group’s geographic exposure

Secondly, the Group has a strong brand, recognised as a market leader by clients and candidates across the UK and Europe As
markets recover, the Group’s brand has been enhanced through conunued mmvestment in marketing dunng the downturn and this
should dnive additional business opportunities as markets recover

Thirdly, companies are attracted by the benefits of outsourcing, whether 1n relation to technology spend or recrustment of talent
and this competitive advantage has served the Group well Off-shonng 1s a natural service extension for a specialist technology
recruitment organisation Chients increasimngly demand a range of options when reviewing hiring needs, attracting talent and at
the same time, seeking to reduce project costs  Our umque advantage in offering all these services had the effect of making the
Group more resilient to changes 1n demand as demonstrated 1n the results for the year to 31 January 2010

Fourthly, we generally have a considered and prudent approach to tnvestment Organic expansion of the business 1s cntically
dependent upon the rate of investment and timing of the business cycle As a consequence of this approach and with no long
term debt, less restructuring was required duning the recession and now, having retained the expertise and knowledge within the
Group, spare fee-earning and office capacity 1s wn placed 1o take advantage of the recovery

Finally, as demand recovers, the reduction 1n overall capacity in the industry as a result of consolidation and natural attrition
will provide opportumty for strong focused orgamsations with strong brands and market leadershup Our objective 15 to pursue
market share gains and invest 1n the brand during downturns, positioning the business for growth when economic conditions
improve
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Board and Employees

On the 27 March 2009, David Higgins, a Non Executive Director decided to step down from the Board We wish him well for
the future

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all of the Group’s employees and associates who have worked incredibly hard
duning the recession to ensure clients and candidates remarn our top prionity

Prospects and Outlook

The Group’s resilient financial performance over the last two vears has demonstrated the effectiveness of the broad portfolio of
services, 1n particular the outsourcing business which has increased its revenue duning the global recesston and underpinned the
Group’s profitability

The year has started broadly 1n line with our expectations and we are now seeing a recovery m several markets and

geographues Whulst the strength of this recovery 1s uncertain, we believe that, wath the worst behind us and the prospects for
global economic growth improving, the business 1s well positioned to take advantage of the upturn as 1t gathers momentum

Tan Kirkpatrick
Chairman
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
United Kingdom and Ireland

Revenue in the UK and Ireland has declined by a less than expected 7% to £110 3m (2009 £118 3m) and gross profit was
lower by 18% to £24 9m (2009 £30 6m) Included 1n these results are revenues of £4 7m (2009 £2 6m) attributable to
subsidianies of UK clients based 1n Asia Operating profit was 60% lower at £1 9m compared to £4 8m the previous year

We are pleased with the result given the depth of the economic contraction The UK buswness benefited from its scale, expertise
and well known brand as compames migrated away from smaller privately owned boutique suppliers to larger, more financially
stable businesses

Whlst the technelogy sector had a strong year 1n 2008, the impact from the financial cnisis appeared to be delayed into the first
half of 2009 wath overall demand particularly for executive search, down almost 50% A recovery in activity began towards the
end of the second half and continues into 2010 as global outsourcing organisations are now gearing up for growth

Demand from the financial services sector was subdued for most of the year and the impact of reductions 1n rates and margins
affected the whole market Consolidation and significant job cuts in the banking sector also reduced the market for executive
search as restructuring delayed plans for hiring top management talent

The public and voluntary sector remained robust throughout 2009 and contnibuted to revenue stability 1n the UK particularly 1n
the permanent and executive recnuitment division A sigmificant contract wan 1n relation to the Department of Home Affairs and
increased volume of executive recrmtment for the NHS and local government provided visibality at a time when the financial
services sector was severely impacted This was the case mn Ireland too, as a key technology outsourcing contract with the
public sector ensured the business remained profitable despite the reduction in demand 1n 2009

As a result of the continued growing demand for outsourcing, our UK division’s revenues were buoyant, with an increase of
85% n gross profit over the previous year

Mainland Europe

Revenue 1n Europe has declined by 13% to £236 7m (2009 £273 2m), gross profit was lower by only 7% to £27 3m (2009
£29 2m) Operating profit was 41% lower at £2 5m compared to £4 3m 1n the previous year However, we are very satisfied
with the financial results, given the strong comparatives This was mawmly due to the focus on Fortune 1000 clients who
continued to require contract recruitment and outsourcing services The business has also benefited sigmficantly from a fuil
year of outsourcing revenues from its Nuremberg based wireless research and development laboratory, Nash Technologies

Demand for permanent recruniment in Europe has, as expected been subdued throughout the year Measures taken by
governments and companies to retain their workforce and skalls through the recession through shorter flexible working
arrangements have resulted in a material over-capacity of labour particularly in manufacturing This has affected contractor
working time as well, reducing the Group’s margin earned on each sub-contractor

Germany was significantly affected by shorter working 1n manufactuning particularly 1n the auto sector and permanent revenue
was down by 47% However, the outsourcing services enjoyed a full year of revenue and the new office 1n Nuremberg
contributed to a rise 1n overall gross profit of 26%, remarkable 1n a deep recession Following the year end a further multi-year
contract was secured by Nash Technologies, located 1n Stuttgart, to provide IT engineening support and maintenance for a
substantial element of the fixed line telecoms infrastructure in Germany Estimated at €40m, the additional contract further
establishes the Group as one of the leading providers of specialist telecoms talent 1n Europe

In Belgium, the business reported revenue down 9%, with permanent recruitment down 60% In the Netherlands a similar
decline in permanent recnutment of 69% was reported and overall gross profit 28% lower reflected the severe impact of the
global recession on the Dutch economy Permanent revenues in France were the least affected in northern Europe, down only
5%

In Scandinavia the Group's executive recruitment business reported a drop of 24% 1n gross profit against a market that declined
substantially With lower demand for hinng, the business focused on 1ts broad portfolio of services, 1n particular winning
sigmficant contracts for leadership services and leveraging 1ts new mid market recruitment service into existing chents The
new office in Poland, whilst doubling revenue, made a loss for the year Following the year end the Group has continued 1ts
expansion from its base in Scandinavia, organically into Finland with the establishment of an office in Helsink: and the
acquisition of a leading busimess 1n Norway estabhishing Harvey Nash Alumni as the market leader in the whole of the Nordic
region
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Switzerland was the only markel where overall recruitment revenue increased, by 7% year on year, mainly as a result of the
recently established Geneva office

United States

Revenue i the USA was broadly flat at £29 3m (2009 £28 6m), but gross profit was lower by 12% to £8 2m (2009 £9 4m)
The change of mix n revenue with lower levels of permanent recruitment and IT consulting, had an effect on the operating
margim Permanent recnntment fell by 14% 1n addition to 29% 1n the previous year Our higher margin consulting business was
also affected by key clients placing large development projects on hold amid continued cost reductions for ongoing support and
maintenance

Despite these challenges the business reported a small profit in one of the toughest recruitment markets 1n the world last year
and gross profit 1n the quarter ended 31 March 2010 was 8% hgher sequentially, compared to the quarter ended 31 December
2009

Summary

In Line with our strategy, the Group has delivered a resihent result for the year, generating profits and cash flow despite the
severe global recession which affected all our markets We are pleased that our key geographic segments were profitable
throughout the peniod

Although revenue visibility continues to be limited, prospects for a return to growth have improved since we last reported As
demand recovers, there will be increasing opportumties for orgamsations with sirong brands and market leadership Qur

objective 1s to pursue those market share gains and return the business to growth as economic conditions improve

Albert Ellis
Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Profit & Loss

Revenue declined by just 10% from £420 1m in the previous year to £376 2m Gross profit fell overall by 13% to £60 4m
{2009 £69 2m) mainly as a result of weak demand for permanent recruttment which fell by 22%

Taght control of the cost base resulted mn a £2 8m reduction in administrative expenses which contributed to an operating profit
before non-recurring items of £4 5m (2009 £104m) Non-recurning items during the year of £2 8m relate to redundancy costs
and provisions for empty property Net interest payable fell by 56% to £0 4m (2009 £0 8m) as a result of a combination of
lower interest rates and working capital requirements

Taxation

The tax charge for the year was £0 4m (2009 £2 6m) giving an overall effective rate of tax of 32 3% (2009 27 5%) This
included an adjustment in respect of prior years of £0 3m (2009 £0 1m) and a deferred tax credit of £1 2m (2009 £0 4m) The
deferred tax credit relates to unrelieved tax losses and other uming differences The overall effective rate of tax 1s a function of
the mix of profits between the vanous countnies in which the group operates

Minority Interest
The minonty interest represents the minonty share of profit after tax of TechDiscovery LLC
Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share fell by 88% to 1 09p (2009 9 00p) Adjusted basic earnings per share (before non-recurring 1tems n
relation 1o the group’s cost reduction mitiatives) was 3 84p, a fall of 57%

Balance Sheet

The net book value of tangible fixed assets at 31 January 2010 was £3 2m (2009 £2 3m) Additions during the year of £2 7m
included expenditure of £2 1m on hardware and software incurred by Nash Technologies in Germany, rechargeable to chients
Other than chient-paid capital expenditure in Nash Technologies, other expenditure was £0 ém of which £0 3m was on
computer equipment and £0 3m was on leasehold improvements, office equipment, furniture and fixtures

The carrying value of intangible assets at 31 January 2010 was £46 2m (2009 £47 8m) of which £1 Om (2009 £1 Om) related
to the Alurmni brand and the balance was goodwill The reduction in the value of goodwill during the year arose as a result of
exchange differences

Net trade recervables fell from £81 Im n 2009 to £61 7m as a result of reduced turnover and an improvement in debtor days to
45 8 (2009 47 2) Over 90 day debtors fell during the year by 53% Trade payables fell from £48 4m in 2009 to £38 Jmas a
result of reduced turnover

Contingent consideration of £0 02m 1n non-current habilities represents amounts payable in cash for the acquisitton 1n
December 2008 of Fila & Myszel Associates 1n Poland

Provisions for habilities and charges relate to non-recurring costs of redundancies and empty property leases in London and
Stockholm

Cash Flow

Strong operating cash inflow of £3 3 less payments of taxation of £2 9m, net interest payments of £0 4m and capital
expenditure of £2 7m, a reduction of £5 4m 1n working capital, the purchase of company shares for the Harvey Nash Group
Employee Benefit Trust of £0 3m and dividend paymenis of £1 5m resulied in an 1ncrease 1 net cash during the year of £0 9m
before foreign exchange movements

Banking Facilities

The Group continues to enjoy substantial headroom 1n relation to 1ts banking facihties of ¢ £30m The faciliies compnise

nvoice discounting and overdraft facilities for working caputal in the UK of £14 O0m and m Europe, €18 Om The invoice
discounting facilities are available on a rolling annual basis The Group has no term debt
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Acquisitions

There were no acquisitions duning the year and all matenial deferred consideration to date has been seitled On 29 Apnl 2010,
the Group acquired 50 1% in Bjerke & Luther for an aggregate consideration of Norwegian Kroner 18 5m (approximately £2 1
million) In the year ended 31 December 2009, Bjerke & Luther reported an audited profit before taxation of approximately
NOK 3 3 mullion {approximately £0 4 mlhion), a turnover of approximately NOK 19 9 milhon (approximately £2 2 million)
and as at 31 December 2009 had gross assets of NOK 8 8 nullion (approximately £1 0 nullion)

Richard Ashcroft
Group Finance Director
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Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 January 2010

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Group and Company for the year ended
31 January 2010

Principal Activities

The Group’s pnncipal activity duning the year was the provision of professional recruitment and outsourcing services, In
particular providing information technology professionals for permanent and contract positions worldwide The Group has a
number of overseas subsidaries and branches in Europe, USA and Vietham The parent company 1s incorporated and
domiciled i the United Kingdom

A review of the business and future developments 15 set out in the Chairman’s Statement, Chief Executive’s Operaticnal
Review and the Financial Review

Key Performance Indicators

The Board considers the following performance indicators to be key in monitoring the Group’s performance
Adjusted operating profit per employee * £8,013 (2009 £16,705),

Gross profit per employee £108,474 (2009 £111,534 )

Average debtor days 46 0 (2009 46 8)

Fee earner percentage ** 67% (2009 68%)

* Operating profit before non recurning items
** Fee-earners as a percentage of total employees

Risk Management
The Board reviews the key nisks facing the business regularly Outlined below are the main risks that could potentially impact
the Group's operating and financial performance

¢  Economic Environment
In the current global slowdown the group has a number of pohicies m place to mitigate economuc nsks These include a
unique portfolio of services which caters for all stages of the economic cycle and a focus on annuity revenue streams
which provide greater visibility of revenue

o KeyChients
The nisk of loss of a key chient 1s lessened by the Group not being overly reliant on any one chient The Group also
ensures that there are regular reviews of relationships with all chents

e Personnel
The loss of semor management or key personnel could adversely affect the Group's results This 1s mitigated by an
ongoing talent management programme, sponsored by the Group’s Executive Council

* Regulatory Environment
The recruitment industry 1s governed by an increasing level of compliance, whrch vanes from country to country and
market to market The Group mitigates this risk by taking external professional advice where appropriate and
maintaing robust mternal controls and processes to ensure compliance with respect to legal and contractual
obligations

Financial risk management 1s detailed in note 3

Results and dividends

The Group’s proefit before tax for the year was £1 3m (2009 £9 5m) A final dividend of 1 35 pence per share has been
declared on 30 Apnl 2010 amounting to £1 Om subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 24 June 2010 (2009 1 2p per
share amounting to £0 9m)

Share Capital

On 8 June 2009 the Company 1ssued 50,000 new ordinary shares, with a norunal value of £2,500 n relation to the emplovee
share option scheme

On 21 October 2009 the Company 1ssued 15,000 new ordinary shares, with a nommal value of £750 in relation to the employee
share option scheme

Dunng the year, the number of shares in 1ssue imcreased to 73,450,393 (2009 73,385,393) ordinary shares with a nominal
value of £3,672,520 (2009 £3,669,270)
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Ihrectors and their Interests

The Directors who held office during the year and at the date of this report are shown on page 2 David Higgins resigned on 27
March 2009 In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, non-executive directors who have served for over
nine years must stand for re-election every year lan Kirkpatrick, Peter Augustine Moore and Tom Crawford have served for
longer than nine years and therefore offer themselves for reappointment  All Executive Directors have service contracts with
the Company terminable by either party giving to the other not less than 12 months’ notice The beneficial interests, i both
shares and share options, of the Directors and their families are disclosed 1n greater detail 1n the Remuneration Report

Post balance sheet events

On 29 Apni 2010, Harvey Nash Group plc acquired 50 1% in Bjerke & Luther for an aggregate consideration of Norwegian
Kroner 18 5m (approximately £2 1 nullion) In the year ended 31 December 2009, Bjerke & Luther reported an audited profit
before taxation of approximately NOK 3 3 million {approximately £0 4 milhon), a turnover of approximately NOK 19 9 million
{approximately £2 2 million) and as at 31 December 2009 had gross assets of NOK 8 8 mullion {approximately £1 0 rmallion)
Bjerke & Luther had net assets of NOK 3 2 milhion (approximately £0 4m) on acqusiion Due to the tuiming of the
acquisition, the allocation of the purchase price has not been completed

Corporate Responsibility

The Board believes that companies have a responsibility to play a constructive part within the communaty at large, and that
social, environmental and ethncal matters are part of the investment mux 1n order to create long term sustainable businesses
The Group has been a leader over the last four years in highlighting the importance of employer brand equity when attracting
the new generation of leadership talent Being a member of the Harvey Nash team also means being a valued contributor to
society Our employees are enthusiastic about people and are always ready to support programmes that benefit the community

The Board’s view 1s that shareholders and employees must make their own personal choices, it 1s not the Group’s
responsibility to do this on their behalf The Group 1s not aligned to a particular political party and neither does 1t make
political donations or chanitable grants However, personal political affihation, participation 1n the democratic process and
financial support for worthy charities and community projects by employees 1s actively promoted

Included below are just a few examples of our recent activaty and the Group’s policies are described 1n the following
paragraphs

(a) Environmental policy

The Group’s operations, being services, are inherently less damaging to the environment than other business sectors

However, the Board recognises that the business must mimimise 1ts impact on the environment and utilises recommendations
from the Carbon Trust to reduce the carbon footprint of the orgamisation The Group’s environmental policy statement commits
our company to

* Re-cycling - reducing the overall amount of waste being sent to landfill by separating out materials for recycling,

e  Water - making use of mains water supply for personal consumption through on site water filtration and punfication
rather than bottled water for hospitality,

+ Efficiency - optimising the operation of building cooling and heating systems,

*  Energy - mtroducing low energy lighting wherever appropnate and feasible,
Technology hardware and software - adding software to each desktop which automatically shuts down computers to
reduce power consumption and heat output,

s The introduction of ‘eco-fonts’ — these use less ink on printed matter, wath only a marginal impact upon guality,

¢ Travelling promoting the use of public transport and mncreased use of video teleconferencing and online webinars to
reduce the impact of business travel upon the environment

{b) Charitable, political and work 1n the community

The Group recogmses the important role 1t plays in helping individuals manage their careers, a role that 1s especially important
durning and following a deep recession In October 2009 we launched the Downturn Success Kit, providing free advice to job
seekers world-wide through comprehensive white papers, podcasts and forums We also actively provided career advice and
guidance on a one-to-one basis for many hundreds of candidates across our international operations, including hosung careers
waorkshops 1n the UK and US

In the UK, Harvey Nash actively engages with the government of the day and other businesses through 1ts CBI membershap
and headline sponsorship of the flagship CBI conference Each year the conference brings together the government, the
opposition parties and business 1n one place to debate the pressing 1ssues facing the nation The CBI works with the UK
government, international legislators and policy-makers to help UK businesses compete effectively

Noorzaman Rashid, Director of Harvey Nash Executive Search - Government and Public Services, 1s chairman of E-ACT, one

of the largest education charities in the UK Under Noorzaman’s leadership, the organisation continues 10 promote excellence
in education and has educational academues in six major UK cities
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Magnus Tegborg, the MD of Harvey Nash’s Nordic business, 1s a Director on the City of Stockholm Board, which 1s
responsible for the city’s public utilities, tounism, culture and the arts

Harvey Nash regularly chairs and hosts trade delegations to Vietnam The Group also recognises the valuable contribution
made by the government of Vietnam in enabling increased investment and trade between Europe and Asia and 1s actively
involved at ministenal level, not only lobbying on behalf of business but also engaging with the Vietnamese leadership on the
strategic challenges and opporturities facing South East Asia

In Sweden, Harvey Nash Alumm consultants contnbuted to The Hunger Project, a global, non-profit orgamusation committed
to reducing malnutnition and hunger The Hunger Project mobilises people at the grassroots level to build self-rehiance,
empowering women as key change agents, and forging effective partnerships with local government

In the US, Lou Messercola, Vice President, New Jersey and Connecticut for Harvey Nash, 1s an active member on the Board of
Directors for The Boys and Girls Club of Northwest New Jersey, which was concerved in 1970 wath a mission to offer core
programmes 1n athletics, education, technology, cultural arts and leadership development Lou uses his business expernience to
mentor youngsters from a wide variety of backgrounds

Melissa Carduff, Semor Techmcal Recruiter San Francisco, 1s an active volunteer for the Adopt A Special Kid Orgamization,
which for 35 years have been the leading agency working to find homes for the more than 76,000 children who reside 1n foster
care i California (0 5 mullion nationally) Elsewhere in the US our Seattle office was also sponsor to an event for the Hope
Heart Institute, the cardiovascular research and education chanty

In the UK, Harvey Nash has been a key sponsor and participant of the Byte Night orgamsation, the IT industry’s annual sleep
out 1n support of Action for Chuldren Each year hundreds of individuals and teams from the technology and IT industries
spend a might exposed to the elemenis in a bid to raise sponsorship and awareness of Action for Children, one of the UK’s
largest chaldren’s charities helping to raise almost £90,000 1n the six years we have been involved This year, the Group
developed a careers advice apphcaton for downloading onto mobile phones where all proceeds went to the Byte Night

In The Netherlands, Harvey Nash supports the Semmy Foundation which 1s a local commumty based chanty established to
help children and families suffering from Diffuse Intninsic Pontine Glioma (DIPG), while raising awareness and money to
finance studies that will lead to a cure for paediatric brain cancer

In Vietnam over 60 staff joined the Terry Fox chanty run 1n Ho Chi Minh City and donated money for cancer patients in
Vietnam All local employees in Vietnam are provided with crash helmets to ensure their safety

In addition to 1ts work with the CBI, Harvey Nash has engaged with the UK’s Trade & Industry Department to facilitate
strategic partnerships across the world in sourcing investment and talent This partnership has been extremely successful in
Vietnam where Harvey Nash 1s one of the largest investors 1n the Vietnamese software and BPO markets

In partnership with the UK government, Harvey Nash raised funds in support of the Hiati disaster This global co-ordinated
programme nvolved raising funds centrally, as well supporting local offices hosting imtiatives such as quiz mghts and
sponsored sporting activities

In September 2009 a mult-national team of Harvey Nash, Alumm and TechDiscovery cyclists, led by CEO Albert
Ellis, undertook 2 90 mile chanty cycle nde from Oxford to Cambndge raising over £2,500 for a global childrens chanty ,Plan
International, as well as supporting the Bnitish Heart Foundation

{¢) Employee engagement

The Group 1s a strong meritocracy, where talent comes first An attractive culture and strong corporate values are at the heart
of what we do Integrity, openness, transparency, fairness, passion and excellence 1n delivery are just some examples of the
professional attributes to which we all aspire We wish to work 1n the longer term 1nterests of our chents and candidates and we
know this, in turn will work 1n the longer term interests of our sharehelders

The Group underlines this commitment with our membership of the Recruitment and Employment Confederation which
requires the Group to observe the highest principles of ethics, equity, integnity, professional conduct and fair practice

The Group’s commutment to its employees means that 11 takes actions to achieve a common awareness of alt employees in
relation to the financial and economic factors that affect the performance of the company Employees are also systematically
provided with information on matters of concern to them and are consulted on a regular basis to ensure their views can be
taken 1nto account when making decisions that are likely to affect their interests
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(d) Equal opportunity and diversity
The Harvey Nash Group fully supports the auns of the UK Equalities Act 2010, not just because it 1s the law, but because we
believe equality matters and 1s necessary for
¢ ndividuals everyone has the nght to be treated fairly and the opportunity to fulfil their potential To achieve this we
must all tackle inequality and root out discnimination,
» the economy acompetitive economy and successful organisations draw on all the available talents and ability and are
not held back by prejudice, and
s society a more equal society 15 more cohesive and at ease with 1tself

Everyone and every company has a stake 1n creating a fair society Fair societies grant companies a favourable environment,
the “licence to operate”, which in turn creates the foundatuon for a prosperous economy and a peaceful society

The Group seeks to fully promote diversity and opportunuty for all in the workplace and also actively engages 1ts clients in this
regard Harvey Nash’s umique and groundbreaking diversity imtiative called “Thay” 1s designed to increase its pool of diverse
candidates usng the internet but also actively promoting candidates from under-represented groups of the community and
advising chients on their own diversity programmes {www harveynash com/tbay) We also link with orgamsations such as the
Asia Business Network, Professional Muslim Institute, Women in Business Forum and many more We are corporate members
of the Association of Disabled Professionals as well as a strategic partner for Leonard Cheshire Disability’s initiative,
Surtability

Supporting and secunng female candidates 1n semor executive business positions 1s the key objective for Harvey Nash’s
Inspire womens network and programme of events Harvey Nash Scotland’s active participation in the “Girl Geek™ dinner
network 1s also atmed at supporting the community of business women 1n the technology and creative sectors

Harvey Nash not only ensures that employment decisions are made consistent with equal opportunities legislation in each
country, but, the Group actively encourages a diversity consciousness among i1ts management, staff and clients One of our key
principles 1s that the Group’s senior management 1s made up of nationals 1n the country in which they operate, who understand
the market and are naturally integrated in the local business culture

Due consideration 1s also given to the recrmitment, promotion, tramning and working environment of all staff including those
with disabilities

{e) Health & Safety
It 1s the policy of the Group to take all reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard the health, safety and welfare of its
employees, visitors and other persons who may be affected by its acuivities

The Group
¢  assesses the nsk to health and safety,
* implements safe systems at work,
e provides information, instruction and traiming,
¢ regularly reviews 1ts policies

(f) Supplier payment policy

It 1s the policy of the Group to agree appropriate terms and conditions for transactions with suppliers (from standard terms to
individually negotiated contracts) and that payment should be made 1n accordance wath those agreed terms subject to
compliance with the agreed contractual supplier service levels

The Group endevours to pay sub-contractors providing technology services within 27 days (2009 27 days) of receipt of their
mvoice This contrasts with the Group’s trade debtors who settled their invoices within 46 days (2009 47 days) Other trade
creditor days of the Group for the year ended 31 January 2010 were 63 days (2009 70 days) based on the ratio of Group trade
creditors at the year end to the amounts invoiced duning the year by trade creditors The company has no trading activity
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Substantial Shareholdings
On 29 Apnl 2010, the Company had been notified that there were holdings of 3% or more 1n the ordinary share capatal of the

Company as follows

No. of

shares % of total
Standard Life Investments 7,019,506 956
Ruver and Mercantile Asset
Management 6,049,882 824
Mr D Higgins 5,484,655 747
Directors 5,289,899 720
Mr David Treacher 5,015,992 683
Uss 4,158,210 566
Gartmore [nvestment Management 3,885,688 529
RBC Europe collateral account 3,655,319 498
JPMorgan Asset Management 3,106,400 423
Barclays Stockbrokers (ND) 2,693,855 367

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
The Company maintains liability msurance for the Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidianes

Employee Share Schemes
The Drirectors consider that the opportunity to own shares in the Group 1s a vital part of motivating and retaining employees

Detals of the share schemes are included on page 22

Pensions
The Group operates three defined contribution pension schemes the Harvey Nash plc Directors’ Retirement and Death
Benefits Scheme, the Group Personal Pension Plan and a stakeholder scheme

Authority to purchase own shares

The Directors on behalf of the Company have authority to purchase up to 10% of the Company’s issued share capital

During the year the Company purchased 911,909 shares at 38p per share with a normmnal value of £45,595, representing 1% of
1issued share capital These shares are held by the Employee Benefit Trust and will be made available for employee share
awards and the exercise of options, thus avoiding future share dilution

Political and Charitabte Donations

The Group made no political or charitable donations during the year (2009 £nil)

However, as outlined in the Corporate Responsibility section above, personal political affiliation, participation 1 the
democratic process and financtal support for worthy chanties and community projects by employees 1s actively promoted

Reappointment of Auditors
The Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue 1n office and a resolution that they

will be re-appointed will be proposed at the AGM

On behalf of the Board

%“2\@4“““’

Richard Ashcroft
Company Secretary
18 May 2010
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Corporate Governance
for the year ended 31 January 2010

The Group supports the Principles of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice as set out tn the FRC Combined Code 1ssued
in June 2008 The Board has considered the implications of the revised Combined Code on the Group’s governance and will
comply with those provisions considered appropnate for the size of the Group

Application of Principles of Good Governance

Board of Directors

During the year the Board of Directors compnsed three Executive and four Non-Executive Directors until David Higgins
resigned on 27 March 2009 A list of Director biographies together with their roles 1s given on page |  Tom Crawford and
David Higgins are not considered independent owing to interests in the Group’s shares The Group has an Independent
Chairman (Ian Karkpatrick) and Semor Independent Non-Executive Director (Gus Moore) who are both members of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees The Executive Board members were the Chief Execunve Officer, Group Finance
Director and European Managing Director In addition, the Non-Executive Deputy Chairman, David Higgins, was a member of
the Nomination Commttee until he resigned

The Board meets at least 10 t:mes per annum and has a fixed schedule for reviewing the Group’s operating performance In
addition other meetings are arranged as required to deal with specific 1ssues or transactions The Board also has a schedule of
matters and responsibilities specifically reserved to uself, the main items of which include

approval of the pubhished financial results and other statements,

appomntments to the Board and other Board Commuttees,

approval of the annual Group Strategic Plan and Budget,

approval for acquisitions, mergers and disposals,

approval for new businesses which require start up capital,

approval of capital expenditure and leasehold agreements over certain thresholds,

approval of matenal contracts over certain thresholds and those not 1n the ordinary course of business, and
approval of treasury policy and significant financing arrangements

* & & & & & o

During the year attendance at the pre-arranged meetings was 100% for all Board members There were 11 Board meetings in
the 12 months to 31 January 2010

The Executive Directors are responsible for the overall operational and financial management of the Group within the
framework set out by the Board The Executive Council sits below the Group Board and executes the day to day running of
operations The Executive Council 1s made up of semor operational management, including the executive directors Outside the
formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board, the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors make themselves available for
consultation with the Executive team as often as necessary

Procedural compliance 1s monitored by the Chairman and the Group Finance Director (who 1s also the Company Secretary) and
Directors’ appointment and removal 1s a matter for the Board as a whole Independent professional advice and training are
available to all the Directors The Semor Non-Executive Director 1s available for consultation with shareholders, through the
Company Secretary The Executive Directors have met with the Company’s major sharcholders and other potential investors
on a regular basis and have reported to the Board on those meetings

On joming the Board, a new Director receives appropnate mduction mcluding meeting with other Directors and semior
management, visiting the Group’s key operations and meeting the Group’s principal advisers

The Board has a policy of providing reasonable funding for independent professional advice for all Directors in furtherance of
their duttes as Directors of the Company

In relation to non-reserved matters the Board 1s assisted by a number of committees with delegated authority

The board discusses and reviews its performance and membership regularly, both ndividually and as a whole, and continues to
consider that 1t 15 operating effectively In the year, a formal survey was conducted to allow the board to provide confidenual
feedback on 1ts performance

Page 14




Audit Committee

The Audit Commuittee meets at least twice a year with the Group’s senior financial management and external auditors to review
the intenm and annual financial statements, the accounting policies of the Group, 1ts internal financial control procedures and
compliance with accounting standards The members of the Commuittee are Ian Kirkpatrick (Chairman) and Gus Moore, both
of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors  The Audit Committee met twice 1n the year to 31 January 2010 with full
attendance by its members

The Board considers that the membership of the Commattee as a whole has sufficient recent and relevant financial experience to
discharge 1ts function The Commuttee has a formal agenda, timetable and terms of reference

Dunng the course of the year ended 31 January 2010 the Commuttee has

s reviewed the financial statements and the financial reporting judgements contained within those statements for the Group
and any formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial performance,
reviewed the Group’s internal control system and risk controls,
reviewed various reports and recommendations from the Group’s internal audit function,
made a recominendation to the Board 1n relation to the appointment, terms of engagement and remuneration of the external
auditors whilst momtoring their independence and objectivity,

¢ reported to the Board any matters, which 1t considered needs action or improvements together with recommended actions,
made uself available to hear any concerns from staff, in confidence, and
reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process

The Commuttee’s full terms of reference are available from the Company Secretary on request

The Audit Comrmuttee applies a policy which governs the provision of audit and non-audst services provided by the auditors
and, 1n summary, requires significant non-audit services other than tax and other comphance services to be subjected to a
competitive tendenng process

The Commuttee 1s authorised to engage the services of external advisers, as it deems necessary and at the company’s expense n
order to carry out 1ts function

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commttee meets at least twice a year The members of the Commuttee are Ian Kirkpatrick {Chairman) and
Gus Moore, both of whom are independent Non-Executive Directors  The Commuttee’s full terms of reference are available
from the Company Secretary on request The Remuneration Commuittee met eight times in the year to 31 January 2010 with
full attendance by 1ts members

The Remuneration Commuttee determines and approves the broad policy and specific remuneration and long term incentive
arrangements of the Company’s Executive Directors and certain of the sentor management The Chief Executive Officer may
be mvited to attend and speak at meetings of the Commuittee, but does not participate 1n any matter which impacts upon his own
remuneration arrangements

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors including the Chairman 1s set by the Executive Directors

The Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 18 to 22 includes details of remuneration policy, practices and the remuneration
of the Directors
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Normnation Commuttee

The Company has a Nomination Commuttee, which provides a transparent process and procedure for the appointment of new
Directors to the Board The members of the Commuttee are lan Kirkpatrick (Chairman), Gus Moore {Semor Independent Non-
Executive) and Albert Elhs (Chief Executive) who was appointed during the year The Comunittee’s terms of reference, which
are available from the Company Secretary on request include

¢ responstbihity for identifying and nominating candidates for appointment to the Board,
e cvaluating the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence required on the Board, and
*  succession planning

Directors’ Remuneration
Details of Directors’ remuneration and the procedures for developing policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the
remuneration of the Board are contained 1n the Remuneration Report set out on pages 18 to 22

Relations with Shareholders

The Board maintains regular dialogue with 1ts institutional shareholders and City analysts by conducting formal presentations,
being readily available for discussion and providing information as required Shareholder attendance and participation at the
AGM 15 welcomed Amendments to the Company’s articles requure shareholder approval at the AGM

Accountability and Audit
The Board made every effort to ensure that this report represents a balanced understandable assessment of the Group’s position
and prospects

The means by which the Board maintains a sound system of mternal financial control is set out below

Internal Control

The Directors have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group maintains a system of internal controls, for momtoring
their effectiveness to provide them with reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial information used within the
business and for publication, and that assets are safeguarded There are mherent limutations 1n any system of internal control
and accordingly even the most effective system can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against misstatement
or loss

The Board identifies and appraises nsks, and maintains control and direction over approprate strategic, financial, and
orgamsational structure matters with formally defined lines of responsibility and delegation of authority There are established
procedures for planming and caputal expenditure, for information and reporting systems, and for monitoring the Group’s
busmess and 1ts performance The Board has delegated to executive management the implementation of the systems of internal
financial control within an established framework that applies throughout the Group, and 1s responsibie for reviewing the
Group’s whistle blowing procedures

The Directors believe the following to be the key procedures established to provide internal financial control

The operation of authonisation procedures

Clearly delegated responsibihties

Close involvement of senior management 1n day to day activaties

Setung of detailed annual budgets with detailed reporting of vanance analysis on a monthly basis
The operation of an Audit Commuttiee, supperted by an internal audit function

During the year, the internal audit function was reviewed by the audit commttee Whlst there were no sigmificant concerns
raised, all actions required as a result of the findings were discussed and agreed as part of an Audit Committee meeting

The Directors have reviewed the systems of 1nternal financial control in operation dunng the year and up to the date of approval

of the Annual Report and no sigmficant concerns were raised  The process 1s regularly reviewed This process accords with
the 2005 Tumbull Guidance
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Compliance with Combined Code Provisions
The Company has complied throughout the year with Section 1 of the Code of Best practice except as follows

Code Provision A3.1 (Board balance and independence), C3.1 {Audit Committee) and B2.1 {(Remuneration Committee)
Provision A3 1 and provision C31 of the FRC Combined Code indicate circumstances where a director may not be
independent These include having served on the Board for more than nine years from the date of first election, and at any
pownt when holding the position of Chairman  As noted above, Tom Crawford 15 also not considered independent owing to his
interest in the Group’s shares Following this, Ian Kirkpatrick, Tom Crawford and Gus Moore are required to put themselves
forward for re-election every year Some further Board evolution 1s anticipated during the coming year

It 1s the Board’s firm position that Ian Karkpatrick and Gus Moore remain mdependent

The Board has appointed Gus Moere as the semor independent Non-Executive Director 1n addition to the Company’s existing
independent Non-Executive Chairman

The remuneration commuttee had two members, including the Chairman

Goiwng Concern

After having made appropniate enquiries including a review of the 2010/11 Group budget, medium term plans and available
banking facilities compared to funding requirements, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group and the
Company have adequate resources to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the financial statements

==—_-J——QQJ o O

Richard Ashcroft

Company Secretary
18 May 2010
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Remuneration Report

for the year ended 31 January 2010

This Report, which has been prepared in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 (“the
Regulations™), outhnes the membership and workings of the Remuneration Commuttee (“the Commuttee™} and provides an
explanation of the various elements of the Company’s remuneration pohicy together with details of Directors’ remuneration n
respect of the year ended 31 January 2010 In accordance with the Regulations, a resolution 1o approve this Report will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The Regulations require the Auditors 1o report to sharcholders on the information contained 1n the ‘Directors’ Remuneration’,
‘Interest in Share Options’, ‘Directors’ Pension Entitlement’ and the ‘Share Option Scheme’ sections 1n this Report (“the
auditable parts”) and to state whether, 1n their opimion, these parts of the Report have been properly prepared n accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Remuneration Policy

Executive remuneration packages are designed to attract, motivate and retain high calibre executives by rewarding them with
competitive salary and benefit packages These packages are reviewed each year to ensure that they are competitive and to
engage the Executive Board 1n relation to personal performance and future expectations The Remuneration Commuttee aligns
the business objectives and the creation of long term shareholder value, and takes advice from external sources mn order to
determune and develop 1ts policies The Group reviews this policy on an on-going basis

The Executive Director remuneration packages consist of
* basic salary

» performance-linked bonus

= share bonuses and options

* company car allowance

* pension contribution

* pnivate healthcare msurance

The performance-linked bonus 1s payable depending on the level of Group profit for the year compared to budget up to a
maximum of 60% of basic salary

Fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors are determined by the Board at the beginming of each financial year

The financial crisis and its impact on the perception of executive pay

The Board recogmses the sensitivities 1n the wider society to executive pay levels m general and has considered its own
position for the current year This downturn has required tough decisions and strong leadership from managers at every level of
every orgamsation including the Harvey Nash Group There have been many examples of employers and employees working
together to minumuse the impact of the recession on jobs, skills and pay However, there have been some 1solated cases where
executive pay has appeared out of step with the economic reality and the public mood In this, the Group has actively supported
the CBI’s call for restraint on executive remuneration ensuring that a return 1o sustainable economic growth 1s not put at nisk

Accordingly the executive directors have voluntarily accepted pay freezes from Apnil 2008 for 3 years In addition, no bonuses
have been proposed or paid for the year ended 31 January 2010, being the only year since January 2003 which did not result in

increased revenues and profits

During the year ended 31 January 2010, the executive Directors have also suspended therr company pension payments and
utilised the cash to purchase shares in liew, after paying personal tax at the full marginal rate
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Directors® Service Contracts
In line with Group policy, Directors’ contracts contain notice penods which do not exceed 12 months

The details of the service contracts of those who served as directors during the year are

Contractual
Contract Unexpired Notice termination
date term period payments
Executive

Albert Ellis 010201 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period
Richard Ashcroft 14 1105 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice period
Simon Wassall 17 1005 Continuous 12 months Unexpired notice penod

Non-Executive
Ian Kirkpatrick 0708 C1 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Tom Crawford 07 08 01 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period
Gus Moore 07 08 01 Continuous 6 months Unexpired notice period

Members of the Remuneration Commttee
The members of the remuneration committee during the year were Ian Kirkpatrick and Gus Moore

Both members are independent Non-Executive Directors lan Kirkpatrick chairs the committee

Performance Graph
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In the opinion of the Directors the FTSE Smallcap Index 1s the most appropniate index agawnst which the total shareholder
return of Harvey Nash Group plc should be measured considening the vanation in market capitalisation of the Group over the

five year period ending 31 January 2010
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Directors’ Remuneration (audited)

31 Jan 31 Jan
Salary Benefits  Annual 2010 2009
& fees  in kind bonus Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Executive

Albert Ells 291,500 20,726 - 312,226 468,124
Richard Ashcroft 149,200 15,306 - 164,506 246,650
Simon Wassall 212,000 19,826 - 231,826 344,311

Non-Executive
Ian Kirkpatrick 61,600 - - 61,600 60,200
Tom Crawford 26,400 - - 26,400 25,800
Gus Moore 26,400 - - 26,400 25,800
David Higgins * 29,688 - - 29,688 58,000
796,788 55,858 - 852,646 1,228,885

* The payment to David Higgins compnses £7,833 salary and fees and £21,855 paid notice period

Benefits mm kind include car allowance, pnivate healthcare and a limited contribution to the cost of personal tax advice

The executive directors receive performance payments based on the level of Group profit for the year set against budget targets

and external market conditions

Interests in Share Options (audited)
Details of options held by Directors in the Harvey Nash Group plc performance related Share Scheme are set out below

Share
Earliest price Exercise No at No at
Date of exercise  Expiry  ongrant price 0l-Feb Granted Exercised Lapsed 31-Jan
grant date date date (p) {p) 2009  1n year In year _ 1n year 2010
Albert Ellis 110403 110406 110413 35 307 180,000 - - - 180,000
010404 010407 010414 89 89 180,000 - - - 180,000
250506 250509 250516 60 5 60 4 150,000 - - - 150,000
270508 270511 270518 38 39 250,000 - - - 250,000
Simon Wassall 010302 010305 010312 635 58 96 102,943 - - - 102,943
251002 251005 251012 34 2413 50,000 - - - 50,000
110403 110406 110413 35 307 50,000 - - - 50,000
171005 171008 171015 565 55 100,000 - - - 100,000
250506 250509 250516 60 5 604 150,000 - - - 150,000
270508 270511 270518 38 39 150,000 - - - 150,000
Richard Ashcroft 250506 250509 250516 605 60 4 150,000 - - - 150,000
270508 270511 270518 38 39 100,000 - - - 100,000

No other Directors have been granted share options in the shares of the Group or other Group entities None of the terms and
conditions of the share options were vaned during the year The options granted under the Performance Related Scheme are
subject to certain performance cntena, mcluding compounded eamings per share growth compared to the retail price index

The performance cniteria associated with thus scheme were chosen to incentivise the maximisation of shareholders’ return  If
events have happened which cause the Remuneration Commitiee to consider that the performance cntena have become unfarr
or impractical, they may, in their discretion amend the performance critena
The options were granted at the prevailing market price, calculated as the average of the previous five days mud closing price,
at the time of the grant m accordance with the rules of the scheme There was nil cost to the directors at the date of grant The
market price of the Group shares at the end of the financiat year was 33p The range of market prices during the year was

between 25p and 54p
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Interest in Shares
The interest of the Directors 1n the shares of the company were

31Jan10 31 Jan 09

Ordmary Ordmary

shares shares

Albert Elhs 470,380 410,131
Ian Kirkpatrick 5,250 5,250
Tom Crawford 4,586,467 4,576,827
Gus Moore 41,640 32,000
Richard Ashcroft 111,438 76,889
Simon Wassall 72,576 26,890

Included 1n the above, pursuant to the provisions of the Compames Act 2006, Tom Crawford 1s deemed to be mterested 1n his
capacity as a trustee 1n the ordinary shares of the Company held by Harvey Nash plc Funded Unapproved Pension and Death
Benefit Schemes and the Harvey Nash Directors’ Retirement and Death Benefit Scheme As at the date of this report and 31
January 2010, the interest was 1n a total of 434,425 ordinary shares

Directors’ Pension Entitlement (audited)

The Group made the following pension contributions during the year to defined contrnibution schemes nominated by

the respective Executive Director For the majonity of the year, the directors received shares in the Group 1n heu of pension
contributions

31 Jan 10 31 Jan 09

£ £

Albert Elhs — pension contribution 4,858 28,875
Albert Ellis — shares received 1n lieu of pension contrzbution 24,292 -
Richard Ashcroft - pension contribution 2,520 14,933
Richard Ashcroft — shares received 1n licu of pension contnbution 12,600 -
Simon Wassall- pension contribution 5,300 21,000
Simon Wassall- shares received m lieu of pension contnbution 15,900 -
65,470 64,808

Share Option Schemes (audited)
At 31 January 2010, the following options to subscribe for ordinary shares have been granted to certain employees (including
Directors) under the terms of the Share Option Schemes

The Harvey Nash Group plc Performance Related Share Schemes

The Performance Related Schemes are admimistered by the Board under the supervision of the Remuneration Commuttee The
schemes are open to all full time employees except those who have had a material interest in the Group within the previous 12
months The options granted under the Performance Related Scheme are subject to certain performance cnteria, including
compounded earnings per share growth compared to the retail price index The performance critena associated with this
scheme were chosen to mcentivise the maximisation of shareholders’ return If events have happened which cause the
Remuneration Commuttee to consider that the performance critena have become unfair or impractical, they may, 1n their
discretion amend the performance critena

The schemes’ exercise price 1s determined by the Board but will not be less than the average share price for the five days
immediately preceding the grant of options The Harvey Nash Group plc Performance Related Share Plan 1s an Inland Revenue
Approved Scheme, but the Board 1s able to grant unapproved options under the scheme For schemes from July 2000 the
Group has obtained agreement from the employee that he or she will settle the employer’s national insurance charge in respect
of any gain anising on eventual exercise All options are granted for nil consideration
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Cptions Options not
Options at exercisable at exercisable ai
Dateof  Exercisable Exercisable  Exercise 1 February 31 January 31 January
grant from to price 2009 Granted Forferted Exercised 2010 2010
010302 010305 010312 £059 576,471 - 82,353 - 494,118 -
251002 251005 251012 £024 718,000 ) 10,000 65,000 643,000 )
110403 110406 110413 £031 762,000 - 247,000 - 515,000 )
271103 271106 271113 £0 77 25,000 - - - 25,000 ]
010404 010407 010414 £0 89 360,000 - 180,000 - 180,000 -
240604 240607 240614  £070 50,000 - 10,000 - 40,000 -
020804 020807 020814 £070 50,000 - - - 50,000 -
151104 151107 151114 £080 140,000 - 10,000 - 130,000 -
180505 180508 180515 £0 55 175,000 - 25,000 - 150,000 -
171005 171008 171015 £0 355 316,000 - - - 310,060 -
270406 270409 270416  £068 140,000 - 30,000 - 110,000 -
250506 250509 250516  £060 675,000 - 25,000 - 650,000 -
010606 010609 010616 £060 100,000 - - - 100,000 -
250607 250610 250617 £0 88 850,000 - 100,000 - - 750,000
251007 251010 251017 £0 66 70,000 - 20,000 - - 50,000
270508 270511 270518 £039 500,000 - - - - 500,000
171208 171211 171218 £030 82,500 - - - - 82,500
Total - 739,353 65,000 3,397,118 1,382,500
On behalf of the Board
O Kln —

Ian Kirkpatrick

Chairman

18 May 2010

\
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report
for the year ended 31 January 2010

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements
mn accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the group financial statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Umion, and the parent company financial statements in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) In preparing the group financial statements,
the directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs, 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satsfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and the company and of the profit or loss of the company and group for that period In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs 1ssued by IASB and applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explamned in the group and parent
company financial statements respectively, and

»  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the company will
continue n business

The directors are responstble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and the group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
rregularities

The directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the company’s website Legislation n the United Kingdom
goverming the preparation and dissenunation of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed on page 1 confirm that, to the best of theirr knowledge

e the group financial statements, which have been prepared 1n accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and
fatr view of the assets, liabilities, financial positton and profit of the group, and

e the Directors’ Report on pages 9 - 13 and the Chairman's Statement, Operational Review and Financial Review contamed
on pages 3 - 8 includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the group,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

In accordance with Section 418, 1n the case of each director in office at the date the directors’ report 1s approved, that

(a) so far as the director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware,
and

(b) he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information

On behalf of the Board

—J Panwe

Richard Ashcroft
Company Secretary

18 May 2010
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Members of Harvey Nash Group ple

We have audited the group financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended 31 January 2010 which comprnise
the Consohdated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the Shareholders’ Funds and Changes 1n Shareholders’ Equity and the related notes
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responstbilities Statement set out on page 23, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to
audit the group financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and oaly for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scoepe of the audit of the financial statements

An audit imvolves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s eircumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinton the group financial statements

e pive a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 January 2010 and of 1ts profit and cash flows for the
year then ended,

e  have been properly prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
e have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

¢ the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the group financial statements are prepared
1s consistent with the group financial statements, and

¢ the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 14 - 17 with respect to intemal control and
risk management systems and about share capital structures 1s conststent wath the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report m respect of the following
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you 1f, in our opinion
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
¢ we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
e acorporate governance statement has not been prepared by the parent company
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

e the directors’ statement, set out on page 23, mn relation to going concern, and
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e the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s comphance with the nine provisions of the
2008 Combined Code specified for our review

Other matters

(a) We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended 31
January 2010 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 15 described as having been audited

(b) The maintenance and integnity of the Harvey Nash website 1s the responsibility of the directors, the work carried out by the
auditors does not nvelve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes
that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were imtially presented on the website

{c) Legslation m the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legistation n other junisdictions.

-

Nigel Reynolds

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtors
L.ondon

18 May 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 January

Notes 2010 2009
£°000 £ 000
Revenue 5 376,209 420,101
Cost of sales (315,789) (350,950)
Gross profit 5 60,420 69,151
Total admimstrative expenses (58,775) (58,794)
Operating profit before non recurring items 5,7 4,463 10,357
Non recurring items 28 (2,818) )
Operating profit 5,7 1,645 10,357
Finance income 6 86 117
Finance costs 6 (448) (943)
Profit before tax 1,283 9,531
Income tax expense 8 (415) (2,621)
Profit for the year 868 6,910
Attributable to
Equuty holders of the company 795 6,524
Minonty interest 73 386
868 6,910
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders of the
company during the year
- Basic earnings per share 1.09p 9 00p
- Diluted earmings per share 1.08p 892p
Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 January
2010 2009
£ 000 £7000
Profit for the year 868 6,910
Foreign currency translation differences {1,791) 6,811
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (1,791) 6,811
Total comprehensive (loss) / mcome for the year (923) 13,721
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the company (996) 13,335
Minority interest 73 386
(923) 13,721

The above resulis are denved from continuing activaties
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 Januvary 2010

Notes 2010 2009
£ 000 £ '000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 3,223 2,256
Intangible assets 11 46,151 47,758
Deferred income tax assets 8 2,761 1,648
52,135 51,662
Current assets
Cash 5,146 4,458
Trade and other receivables 12 73,638 103,987
Total assets 130,919 160,107
LIABILITIES
Noa-current hiabilities
Contingent consideration (19) (21)
Deferred income tax habilities 8 {228) (305)
Provision for hab:littes and charges 29 {424) -
(671) (326)
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 13 (72,144) (97,488)
Current income tax liabilities 14 (954) (2,862)
Contingent consideration - (31
Provision for liabiliies and charges 29 (359) -

(73,457) (100,381)

Total habilities (74,128) (100,707)
Net assets 56,791 59,400
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity shareholders
Ordinary shares 17 3,673 3,669
Share prermium 19 8,425 8,412
Shares to be 1ssued 49 86
Fair value and other reserves 15,079 15,079
Own shares held {412) (120)
Cumulative translation reserve 5,788 7,579
Retained earnings 20 23,603 24,107
56,205 58,812
Minority interest in equity 586 588
Total equity 56,791 59,400

The Consohdated financial statements on pages 26 to 50 were approved by the Board on 18 May 2010 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Q9O~ &:(‘ — tt%—ll Qe m -

Ian Kirkpatrick Richard Ashcroft
Chairman Group Finance Director
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Shareholders’ Funds and Changes 1n Shareholders’ Equity

for the year ended 31 January

Share Share  Shares Fair Own Cumulative Retained Total
capital premium to be value shares  translation  earnings equity
issued and held reserve
other
reserves

£°000 £ 7000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £ 000
Balance at
1 February 2008 3,622 8,208 1,643 15079  (148) 767 18,963 48,134
Profit for the year - - - - - - 6,524 6,524
Currency translation
adjustments - - 188 - - 6,811 - 6,999
Total recognised
income and expense
for the year 3,622 8,208 1,831 15,079  (148) 7,578 25,487 61,657
Employee share option
and bonus plan - - - - 28 1 136 165
IFRS 2 Deferred Tax
charge to equity - - - - . - (147 (147)
Acquisitions 1n the
year 47 204 (1,745) - - - - (1,494)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (1,369) (1,369)
31 January 2009 3,669 8,412 86 15,079 (120) 7,579 24,107 58.812
Profit for the year - - - - - - 868 868
Currency translation - - - - - (1,791) - (1,791)
adjustments
Total recogmsed 3,669 8,412 86 15,079 (120) 5,788 24,975 57,889
mcome and expense
for the year
Employee share option 4 13 - - 3 - 124 id4
and bonus plan
IFRS 2 Deferred Tax - - - - - - 4 4
charge to equity
Acquisitions 1n the - - 37 - 52 - (15) -
year *
Own shares purchased - - - - (347) - - (347)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (1,485) (1,485)
31 January 2010 3,673 8,425 49 15,079 {412) 5,788 23,603 56,205

* Thus relates to deferred consideration for the acquisition of Silkroad Systems from June 2007 being settled 1n the year
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 January 2010

Notes 2010 2009
£ °000 £°000

Profit before tax 1,283 9,531
Adjustments for
- depreciation 10 1,359 791
- amortisation 11 49 79
- loss on disposal of fixed assets 7 167 -
- finance income 6 (86) (117)
- finance costs 6 448 943
- share based employee settlement and share option charge 26 127 173
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 3,347 11,400
Changes 1n workung capital (excluding the effects of acquisition and exchange
differences on consolidation)
- Decrease / (increase) in trade and other recervables 29,469  (19,919)
- (Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables (24,845) 18,007
- Increase in provisions for hiabilities and charges 29 783 -
Cash flows from operating activities 8,754 9,488
Income tax paid (2,935) (2,207)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,819 7,281
Cash flows from 1nvesting activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 10 (638) (445)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment — rechargeable to clients 10 (2,071) -
Cash acquired with acquisitions - 11
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings @an (4,923)
Interest received 6 86 117
Net cash absorbed from investing activities (2,654) (5,240)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 17 -
Purchase of own shares (347) -
Dividends paid to group shareholders (1,485) (1,369)
Interest paid 6 (448) (943)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,263) (2,312)
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 902 (271)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,458 4,184
Exchange (losses) / gains on cash and cash equivalents (214) 5435
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 5,146 4,458
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Notes to the Consolhidated Financial Statements

1. General Information
Harvey Nash Group plc (‘the Company’) and 1ts subsidianes (together ‘the Group’) 1s a leading provider of specialist
recruitment and outsourcing solutions The Group has offices in the UK, Europe, Umted States and Vietnam

The Company 1s a public listed company incorporated in the UK Its registered address 1s 13 Bruton Street, London W11 6QA
and 1ts histing 15 on the London Stock Exchange

2. Accounting Policies
The pnncipal accounting policies adopted 1n the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies
have been consistently applied to both years presented unless otherwise stated

{a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc have been prepared in accordance wath International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Umon (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC interpretations and the
Compames Act 2006 applicable to Companies reporting under [FRS The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention on a gomng concern basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial
liabiliies (including denvative mstruments) at fair value through profit or loss The preparation of financial statements
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise Its
judgement 1 the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assurmnptions and estimnates are sigmificant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
note 4 The main section of these financial statements presents the financial statements of the Group prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the European Unton Pages 52 to 58 show the financial
statements of the Company prepared under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP)

(1) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective 1n 2009 and relevant for the Group

1AS 1 *Presentation of Financial Statements’ (revised 2007) and IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ The implementation of TAS 1
(revised 2007) resulted 1n changes to disclosure with the inclusion of a Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income The impact of IFRS 8 1s detailed in note 5 The Group has early adopted the IFRS improvement (endorsed 23 March
2010) n relation to non-disclosure of segment assets under IFRS 8§, as they are not reported to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker

(ii) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2009 but not relevant for the Group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are mandatory for the first ume for the current accounting period but
are not relevant to the Group’s operations

IFRIC 13, 'Customer loyalty programmes'

IFRIC 14, EAS 19 - 'The limit on a defined benefit asset, mimmum funding requirements and therr interaction’
IFRIC 15, 'Agreements for the construction of real estate’

IFRIC 16, 'Hedges of a net imnvestment in a foreign operation’

IAS 39 (amendment), 'Financial instruments recogmition and measurement'

(1i1) New standards and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group.

The following new standards and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory for the Group’s
tuture accounting but which the Group has not early adopted

IFRS 3 (revised), 'Business combinations’
IFRIC 17, 'D1stributions of non-cash assets to owners'

IFRIC 18, Transfers of assets from customers'

IAS 27 (revised) "Consohidated and separate financial statements’ (effective from | July 2009)
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IAS 38 (amendment), 'Intangible Asscts’

IFRS 5 (amendment) ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’
IAS 1 (amendment}, Presentation of financial statements'

IFRS 2 (amendments), 'Group cash-settled share-based payment

The Group does not consider that these Standards or Interpretations will have a significant impact on the accounts of
the Group when they come into effect

(b) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the results of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31
January each year and are based on consistent accounting policies

Interests acquired 1n subsidiary undertakings are consohdated from the date control passes to the Group Transactions and
balances, ncluding unreahsed profits, between Group companies are eliminated

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisiion of subsidianies by the Group The cost of an
acquusition 1s measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments 1ssued and liabilities mcurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition Identifiable assets acquired and liabiliies and contingent
liabilities assumed 1n a business combination are measured 1mitally at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest

The nterest of minonty shareholders in the balance sheet 1s stated at the minonty’s proportion of the carrying values of the
assets and liabihties recogmsed

(¢) Revenue recognition
Revenue comprnises the fair value of the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts and after
elimnating sales within the Group

The Group derives 1ts revenue 1n the contract services and interim businesses on a time and matenals basis It 1s recogmsed as
services are rendered as vahdated by receipt of a client approved timesheet or equivalent For fixed pnice development work,
revenue 1s recognised on the percentage completion basis, using pre-specified milestones or a client sign off to trigger invoices
and the estimate of profit For contingency permanent placements, revenue 1s recogmsed and the chlient 1s invoiced on
acceptance of the candidate

Executive search and permanent placement fees are recogmsed as services are provided, typically in three stages, placemeant,
shorthist and retainer fee

(d) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses The cost of
property, plant and equipment 1s their purchase cost, together with any incidental costs of acquisition

Depreciation 1s calculated so as to wnte off the cost of the assets, less their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis
over the expected useful economic hives of the assets concerned The pnincipal annual rates used for this purpose are

Leasehold improvements — over the term of the lease
Office equipment — 20% straight line

Furmiture, fixtures and equipment — 20% straight line
Computer equipment — 33 33% straight line

Motor vehicles — 25% reducing balance

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date  An asset’s
carrying amount 1s wrnitten down immediately to 1ts recoverable amount 1f the asset’s carrying amount 1s greater Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by companng proceeds with carrying amounts The changes are included 1n the income
statement

Fixed assets purchased to deliver outsourcing projects, which have been recharged to clients at cost, remain the legal property
of Harvey Nash They have therefore been capitalized within the balance sheet and depreciated at the rates histed above
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The recharge of the asset at cost to the client represents a disbursement associated wath the project delivery and 1s recogmzed 1n
line wath the depreciation

(¢} Foreign exchange

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entines are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment 1n which the entity operates (the “functional currency™) The consolidated financial statements are
presented 1n sterhing which 1s the Company's functional and presentational currency

Monetary assets and liabihities denominated n foreign currencies in each company are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date Transactions 1n foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction

On consolidation, revenues, costs and cash flows of overseas undertakings are included in the Group income statement at
average rates of exchange for the period  Assets and habtlities denomnated 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterling
using rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and any differences arising are taken 1o reserves

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment n foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
mnstruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equty on consolidation When a foreign
operation 1s sold, such exchange differences are recogmsed 1n the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

(f) Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating lease and contract hire agreements are taken to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the lease term Reverse premiums and lease incentive benefits are recognised as a reduction in rental expense The benefit
15 allocated on a straight line basis over the lease term

(g) Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net 1dentifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of the acquisition Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses

Other acquired intangible assets are capitalised at cost Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are
capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition Intangible assets are amortised to residual values over the useful economic
Iife of the asset The brand intangible asset recogmsed 1n the acquisition of Alumni AB was valued using the rehef from royalty
method The brand intangible asset 1s being amortised on a straight line basis over 1ts useful economic hife which the directors
consider 1s 20 years

(h) Imparwrment of assets

All assets are tested annually for impairment and whenever events or changes n circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of sale and value 1n
use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 1s
mncreased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
orignal carrying value prior to any impairment charges A reversal of an impamrment charge 1s recogmsed in the income
statement immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s carned at a revalued amount, 1n which case the reversal of impairment loss 1s
treated as a revaluation reserve adjustment

{1) Trade and other recervables

Trade and other receivables are recognised imtally at fair value A proviston for impairment of trade recervables 1s established
when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able 1o collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the
recetvables Sigmificant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorgamsation, and default or delinquency 1n payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade
recetvable 1s impaired The amount of the provision 1s the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the onginal effecuve interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 1s recogmsed m the income statement within
‘admuustrative expenses’ When a trade receivable 15 uncollectible, 1t 1s wnitten off against the allowance account for trade
recetvables Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credited against ‘admimstrative expenses’ in the
income statement

(j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash i hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term hquid investments with
oniginal matunties of three months or less, and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowing 1n current
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habilities on the balance sheet For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are net of bank
overdrafts where the overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management

(k) Share capital

Ordnary shares are classified as equity Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury
shares), the consideration paid 1s deductible from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders unul the shares are
cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received 1s included
1n equity atinbutable to the Company’s equity holders

(1) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s provided 1n full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of
assets and habilities and their carrying amounts 1n the consolidated financial statements Deferred income tax 1s determuned
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted by the balance sheet date and expected to apply when the related deferred
mcome tax asset 1s realised or the deferred income tax hiability 1s settled

Deferred income 1ax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised

{m) Dividend distribution
Dividend distnbution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the
period 1n which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders Interim dividends are recogmsed when paid

(n) Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates various pension plans alt of which are defined contnbution plans The Group pays fixed contributions nto
a separate entity The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods Pension costs on
defined contribution schemes are charged to the income statement 1n the year 1n which they anse

Termmation benefits

Termunation benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for benefits The Group recogmses termination benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably
committed to terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal

Bonus plan
The Group recognises a hability and an expense for bonuses when contractually obliged or where there 1s a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation

Share-based plans

The Group's management awards certain employees bonuses in the form of share options on a discretionary basis  The options
are subject to three-year vesting conditions and theirr fair value 15 recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding ncrease in retained earnings over the vesting period The proceeds recerved net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital and share premium when the options are exercised For options exercised agamst
own shares held, the shares are removed from the own shares held reserve  The Group has applied IFRS 2 ‘Share based
payments’ to all instruments granted after 7 November 2002 but not fully vested as at 1 January 2005 and has adopted the
Black-Scholes model for the purposes of computing ‘fair value” Deferred tax 1s also provided based upon the expected future
tax deductions relating to share based payment transactions and 1s recogmsed over the vestuing period of the schemes concerned

(o) Provisions
Provisions are recogmsed when a present obligation exists as the result of a past event and 1t 1s probable that this wall result 1n
an outflow of economic benefit, the size of which can be relhiably estimated

{p) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are written off as incurred

(q) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument
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(r) Financial assets

The group classifies 1ts financial assets 1n the following categories at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables
The classification depends on the pumpose for which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the
classification of 1ts financial assets at imitial recogmuion

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading A financial asset 1s classified 1n this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term Assets 1n this category are classified as current
assets

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 1n an active
market They are included 1n current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date These are
classified as non-current assets

(s) Non-recurring items
Non-recurning items are presented separately on the face of the Consolidated Income Statement due to their nature and
size The separate reporting of such items helps to provide a better indication of the Group’s underlying business performance

3. Financial Rask Management

Financing

The Group’s principal financial instruments are bank loans, overdrafts, cash and short term deposits  The Group has other
financial instruments such as trade debtors, trade creditors and provisions that anise directly from its operations  Acquisitions
are financed through a mixture of equity and medium term borrowings Working capital finance for day-to-day requirements 1s
provided through operatmg cash generation, mvoice discount facilities and small short term overdraft facilites Al of the
Group’s long term borrowings are made centrally Where applicable, funds are then made available for the financing of the
Group’s subsidianes through intercompany loans

Objectives, pelicies and strategies

The most significant treasury exposures faced by Harvey Nash are raising finance, managing interest rates and cutrency
positions as well as investing surplus cash in high quality assets The Board has established clear parameters, including levels
of authority, on the type and use of financial instruments to manage these exposures Transactions are only undertaken 1f they
relate to underlying exposures and cannot be viewed as speculanve

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capuital are to safeguard the Group’s ability 10 continue as a going concern m order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital In order to maintam or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

During 2009/10, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2008/09, was to have adequate headroom and access to cash
facilities to meet 1ts requirements

2010 2009
Net debt £7000 - -
Total equity £7000 56,791 59,400
Total caputal £7000 56,791 59,400

Geaning ratio % - -

Interest rate risk management
The Group’s policy 1s to minumnise mterest charges through cash pooling and active cash management

Foreign exchange risk management

The Group’s policy 15 to mumnuse foreign currency risk  Harvey Nash manages 115 exposure on equity imvestments 1n overseas
subsidianes through foreign currency borrowings The currency nisk of holding assets and habilities 1n foreign currencies
across the Group 1s managed by partially matchuing foreign currency assets with foreign currency liabihiues

In the year to 31 January 2010, 1f sterling had strengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other vanables held constant,
operating profit for the year would have been £67k (2009 £123k) lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses on
translation of dollar-denomunated assets and hiabilities
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In the year to 31 January 2010, if sterling had strengthened by 5% against the euro with all other vaniables held constant,
cperating profit for the year would have been £144k (2009 £354k) lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses on
translation of euro-denominated assets and habilities

Credit risk
The Group has no sigmficant concentration of credit risk It has policies 1n place to ensure that sales of products are made 10

customers with an appropnate credit history

The table below shows the credit Limit and balance with the Bank at the balance sheet date

2010 2010 2009 2009

£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000

Rating * Credit Limit Balance Credit Limut Balance

Bank overdraft — secured A-1 2,000 313 2,000 -

* Standard and Poor's rating

Liquidity risk

Prudent hiqudity nsk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and committed credit facilities

Management momtors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve (compnsing undrawn borrowing facility, cash and
mnvoice discounting) on the basis of expected cash flow

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether the goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value 1n use of the cash-generating umits to which
goodwiil has been allocated The value 1n use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse
from the cash-generating umt and a suitable discount rate 1n order to calculate present value

Income tax

The Group 1s subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions Sigmficant judgement 1s required in determiming the
worldwide provision for income taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determunation 1s
uncertain during the ordinary course of business The Group recognises liabihties for anticipated tax 1ssues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these matters 1s different from the amounts that were
mitally recorded, such difference will impact the mcome tax and deferred tax provisions in the peniod in which such
determunation 1s made

Share options

Share options are granted on a discretionary basis and vest after three years service The fair value of options granted during
the year was deterrmned using the Black-Scholes valuation model The sigmificant inputs into the model were share price at
grant date, expected price, expected option life and nisk free rate of 4 30% The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns 1s based on statistical analysis of daily share pnices
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5. Segment Information

IFRS & requires disclosure of information about the Group’s operating segments and replaces the requirement to determine
primary (business) and secondary (geographical) reporting segments of the Group It requires a management approach under
which segment information 1s presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes The chief operating

decision maker has been 1dentified as the Group Board

This has resulted in three reportable segments, UK and Ireland, Rest of Europe and United States  Asia Pacific 1s included in

the UK and Ireland segment 1n line with the way the results are analysed by the Group Board
The directors do not consider revenue by ongin to be matenally different from revenue by destination

Services provided by each reportable segment are permanent recruitment, contracting and outsourcing

The Group Board analyses segmental information as follows

Revenue
2010 2009
£000 £°000
Umted Kingdom & Ireland 110,254 118,347
Rest Of Europe 236,687 273,171
United States 29,268 28,583
Total 376,209 420,101

Revenues from one customer 1n the Rest of Europe segment represent approximately £37 1m of the Group’s total revenues

(2009 £79 4m)

Gross Profit

2010 2009
£°000 £°000
United Kingdom & Ireland 24,914 30,556
Rest Of Europe 27,261 29,187
United States 8,245 9,408
Total 60,420 69,151
Operating Profit/(Loss)
2010 2009
£°000 £°000
United Kingdom & Ireland 1,909 4825
Rest Of Europe 2,523 4251
United States 31 1,281
Operating profit before non-recurring 1tems 4,463 10,357
Non- recurning items (2,818) -
United Kingdom & Ireland 1,645 10,357
Depreciation and amortisation charge
2010 2009
£°000 £°000
United Kingdom & Ireland 537 479
Rest Of Europe 698 207
United States 124 105
Total 1,359 791
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The amortisation charge of £49k (2009 £79k) relates to the Rest of Europe segment

6. Finance Income and Costs

2010 2009
£°000 £°000
Interest expense
Interest payable on bank borrowings (448) (905)
Interest on prior year taxes - (38)
Fiance costs (448) (943)
Finance income 86 117
Finance costs — net (362) (826)
7. Operating Profit
The following items have been included 1n amving at operating profit
2010 2009
£°000 £°000
Employee benefits (note 21) 38,241 42,318
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,359 791
Amortisation 49 79
Auditors’ remuneration
- fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of parent company and consolidated 16 16
accounts
- fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s subsidianes pursuant 288 282
to legislation
- fees payable 10 the company’s auditor and associates for other services
- services relating to taxation 45 207
- all other services 70 46
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 638 602
- Property 5,226 4,525
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 167 -
Impairment of trade receivables {43) 86
8. Income tax expense
2010 2009
£°000 £°000
Corporation tax on profits 1n the year — UK - t5
Corporation tax on profits 1n the year — overseas 1,334 2,839
Adjustments in respect of prior years 264 119
Total current tax 1,598 2,973
Deferred tax (1,183) (352)
415 2,621

Total tax charge
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The tax for the year 15 higher (2009 higher) than the Group’s weighted average rate of corporation tax applhed to the pre-tax
profit The weighted average tax rate 1s calculated by taking the overall tax debit or credit in each junisdiction and dividing 1t
by the profit before tax in each junsdiction The low weighted average tax rate (4 §7%) i the year end 31 January 201015 a

function of losses 1n countries with high tax rates

The differences are explained below

2010 2009
£°000 £°000
Profit on ordmary activities before tax 1,283 9,531
Weighted average tax rate 4.87% 25 68%
62 2,448
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 258 274
Income not taxable (299) -
Utlisation of previously unrecogmsed tax losses (128) (259)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset 1s recogmised 336 304
Deferred tax adjustment 1n respect of prior years - (272)
Adjustments o tax in respect of prior year 264 119
Other (78) 7
Total taxation 415 2,621
Current tax:
Tax on profit m the year 1,334 2,854
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years 264 119
Total current tax 1,598 2,973
Deferred tax:
Ongination and reversal of timing differences (1,190) 67
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years - (272)
Deferred tax to equity 4 (147)
Other adjustments 3 -
Total deferred tax (credit) (1,183) (352)
Total tax charge 415 2,621
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Deferred Tax

2010 2009
£°000 £°000
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 765 858
Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 1,996 790
2,761 1,648
Deferred tax Liabilities
Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 months {148) (216)
Deferred tax hability to be recovered within 12 months (80) (89}
(228) (305)
Net deferred tax asset 2,533 1,343
This 15 analysed below
Accrued
Accelerated tax Share-based Tax interest
Asset depreciation payments losses  charges* Other Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
1 February 2009 7 42 682 637 280 1,648
Charged /
(credited) to
mcome statement 445
and equity (1) 7 669 (7} 1,113
1 February 2010 6 49 1,351 1,082 273 2,761

* The deferred tax asset recogrused for accrued interest charges relates to Group interest charges payable by the US business

Unrenutted

Liability earmngs Other Total

£°000 £°000 £°000
1 February 2009 (138) (167) (305)
Charged /
(credited) to
income statement
and equity (10) 87 77
1 February 2010 (148) (80) (228)

Due to the uncertainty of recoverability, deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses, depreciation 1n excess of accelerated
capital allowance and short term timing differences of £756,051 (2009 £1,092,678) have not been recogmsed Future tax
charges may be reduced as a result of tax losses for which a deferred 1ax asset 1s currently not recogrmsed

9. Earnings Per Share

2010 2009
Profit attributable to shareholders £000 795 6,524
Weighted average number of shares 72,675,773 72,471,450
Basic earnings per share 1.09p 9 00p

Basic earnings per share s calculated by dividing the eamings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue duning the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust, which are treated as
cancelled
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For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue 15 adjusted to assume conversion of all
ditutive potential ordinary shares The Group has two categones of potential ordinary shares those share options granted to
employees where the exercise price 1s less than the average price of the Company’s ordinary shares duning the year, and
deferred consideration shares to be 1ssued

2010 2009
Profit attributable to shareholders £7000 795 6,524
Weighted average number of shares 72,675,773 72,471,450
Effect of dilunive secunties 625,171 646,657
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 73,300,944 73,118,107
Diluted earnings per share 1.08p §92p
2010 2009
Adjusted profit attnbutable to shareholders £'000 (see note 30) 2,788 6,524
Weighted average number of shares 72,675,773 72,471,450
Adjusted basic earnings per share 384p 9 00p
10. Property, Plant and Equipment
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Office and Computer ~ Motor
improvements equipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Cost
At 1 February 2009 1,776 778 1,563 8,114 29 12,260
Exchange adjustments (19 (15) (23} (187) 4 (248)
Additions at cost 201 46 66 3i5 10 638
Additions rechargeable to Clients* - - 3 2,068 - 2,071
Disposals - (3) (83) (133) (496) - (715)
At 3] January 2010 1,955 726 1,476 9,814 35 14,006
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2009 1,180 688 1,285 6,836 15 10,004
Exchange adjustments (13) 3 (13 (N ) (32)
Charge for the year 247 34 120 954 4 1,359
Disposals (3) (83) (131) {331) - (548)
At 31 January 2010 1,411 642 1,261 7,452 17 10,783
Net book amount
At 31 January 2010 544 84 215 2,362 18 3,223

* Add:tions rechargeable to chients relate to Nash Technologies in Germany
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Furniture,

fixtures
Leasehold Office and Computer  Motor
improvements equipment equipment equipment vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £ 7000 £°000  £°000  £°000
Cost
At 1 February 2008 1,512 727 1,514 7,282 33 11,068
Exchange adjustments 61 30 (12) 58 a7 120
Acquisitions - - 6 - - 6
Additions at cost 203 21 55 886 13 1,178
Disposals - - - (112) - (112)
At 31 January 2009 1,776 778 1,563 8,114 29 12,260
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2008 1,044 679 1,139 6,538 6 9,406
Exchange adjustments (28) 29) 32 (76) 8 (93)
Charge for the year 164 38 114 474 1 791
Disposals - - - (100) - (100)
At 31 January 2009 1,180 688 1,285 6,836 15 10,004
Net book amount
At 31 January 2009 596 20 278 1,278 14 2,256
The Group held no assets under finance leases or hire purchase contracts in the current or prior year
11 Intangible Assets |
Brands Goodwill Total !
£°000 £ 7000 £°000 |
Cost '
At 1 February 2009 1,113 46,724 47,837
Exchange adjustments 20 {1,578) (1,558)
At 31 January 2010 1,133 45,146 46,279
Amortisation
At 1 February 2009 (79) - {(79)
Charge for the year (49) - {49)
At 31 January 2010 {128) - (128)
Net book amount at 31 January 2010 1,005 45,146 46,151
Brands Goodwill Total
£°000 £°000 £ 000
Cost
At 1 February 2008 1,155 40,670 41,825
Exchange adjustments (42) 5,993 5,951 |
Additions at cost - 108 108
Adjustments - 47 “7)
At 31 January 2009 1,113 46,724 47,837
Amortisation
At 1 February 2008 - - -
Charge for the year (79) - (79)
At 31 January 2009 (79 - (79)
Net book amount at 31 January 2009 1,034 46,724 47,758
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The carrying amounts of the intangible assets by acquisition are as follows

2010 2009

Goodwill £°000 £°000
Harvey Nash BV 2,783 2,848
Harvey Nash US and TechDiscovery LLP 11,058 12,295
Techpartners Group 10,807 10,807
HN IT Ceonsulting NV 6,035 6,168
Impact Execotrves Limined 3,702 3,702
Alumm AB 5,450 5,361
Silk Road BVI 1,262 1,403
Rescon Limited 3,043 4,041
Fila & Myszel Associates Sp 106 99
45,146 46,724

Alumni AB Brand Intangible Asset 1,005 1,634
Total 46,151 47,758

During the year the goodwill in respect of each of the cash generating units was tested for impairment 1n accordance with
IAS36 All were assessed to have a value 1n use 1n excess of their respective carrying values, and hence no adjustments to
goodwill were considered necessary

The key assumptions n the value 1n use calculations were

The model assumes a 7 year business cycle and then a termunal value The first 3 years of the forecasts were based on post-tax
cash flows derived from the board-approved 3 year plan For the following 4 vyears, the growth rates are based on
management’s best esttmate and range from 5% to 15% The terminal growth rate 1s based on the long term growth rate for
each country and was on average 2 6% Management believe the forecasts are achievable

The post-tax discount rate used was based on the industry weighted average cost of capital for each country and was on average
10 2%

Notwithstanding the global recession of 2009, there 15 significant headroom in the testing for impairment for all the acquired
subsidianies apart from Harvey Nash US and TechDiscovery LLP which has headroom of £0 Sm A sensitivity analysis has
been performed m assessing recoverable amounts of goodwill This has been based on changes in key assumptions considered
by management to be possible including a 10% decrease 1n the assumed growth rates The analysis reveals that no impairment
would anse under each scenario other than 1n the case of the US cash generating umit If growth rates are 10% lower than
expected, this would result in an impairment charge of £0 4m  If the weighted average cost of capital was 10% higher than
expected, this would result 1n an imparment charge of £1 Om Management will continue 1o monistor the results over tume, but
currently, do not consider an impairmeni to the value of US goodwill appropnate

12. Trade and Other Recervables

2010 2009
£°000 £°000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 62,047 81,442
Less Provision for bad and doubtful debts (349 (392)
61,698 81,050
Other receivables 3,882 2,731
Prepayments and accrued income 8,058 20,206

73,638 103,987
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As of 31 January 2010, trade receivables of £61 7m (2009 £81 Im) were fully performing

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered 1mpaired As of 31 January 2010, trade recervables
of £19 5m (2009 £28 0m) were past due but not impaired This 1s consistent with normal commercial practices and prior years
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there 1s no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables 1s as follows

2010 2009

Months overdue £°000 £°000
1 — 2 months 14,121 19,957
2 — 3 months 3,541 4,195
QOver 3 months 1,840 3,871
19,502 28,023

As of 31 January 2010, trade recervables of £0 3m (2009 £0 4m) were impaired and provided for

The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers which are 1n difficult economic situations ~ All the impaired
recervables are more than 3 months overdue The creation and release of provision for impaired receavables have been included
n ‘admimstrative expenses’ in the income statement The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contam
imparired assets

Movements on the group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

2010 2009

£°000 £°000

At 1 February 392 306
Prowvision for receivables impairment 129 210
Recervables written off duning the year as uncollectible (121) (124)
Unused amounts reversed (51) -
At 31 January 349 392

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

The maximum exposure to credit rsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of receivable listed above The
group does not hold any collateral as secunity

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denomimated 1n the following currencies

2010 2009

£ ’000 £°000

Sterling 14,937 15,582
Euros 38,598 58,199
US dollar 4,539 4,052
Other currencies 3,624 3,217

61,698 81,050
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13. Trade and Other Payables — current

2010 2009
£'000 £°000
Trade payables 38,252 48,375
Other tax and social secunty payable 6,919 8,695
Accruals and deferred income 19,511 32,671
Other payables 1,462 1,747
72,144 97,488
14 Current Tax Liabilities
2010 2009
£7000 £7000
Current tax habilittes 954 2,862
15. Analysis of Changes in Net Funds
1 February Cash flow Foreign 31
2009 exchange January
movements 2010
£7000 £°000 £000 £°000
Cash and cash equivalents 4,458 902 (214) 5,146
16. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group has total future commitments under operating leases for each of the following periods
2010 2010 2009 2009
Vehicles, Vehcles,
plant and plant and
Property equpment Property equipment
£ 000 £°000 £°000 £7000
Commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases
Within one year 4,843 527 5,007 548
Later than one year and less than five years 6,894 417 10,060 481
After five years 430 - 328 -
12,167 944 15,395 1,029
17. Called Up Share Capital
2010 2009
£ 000 £7000
Authorised
110,000,000 (2009 110,000,000) ordinary shares of 5p each 5,500 5,500
Allotted and fully paid
73,450,393 ordinary shares of 5p each (2009 73,385,393) 3,673 3,669

The Harvey Nash Employment Benefit Trust held 908,792 shares (2009 85,140 shares)
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2010 2009

Movement 1n shares 1n 1ssue shares shares
Ordinary shares of 5p each

At 1 February 73,385,393 72,440,200
Allotted under share option schemes 65,000 -
Acquisition of Silk Road systems - 123,419
Acquusition of Rescon IT Limited - 371,058
Acqusition of TechDiscovery LLP - 450,716
At 31 January 73,450,393 73,385,393

During the year, the number of shares i 1ssue increased to 73,450,393 ordinary shares with a nomunal value of £3,672,520

18. IFRS 2 Share Based Payments

The Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP) was troduced n January 2003 Under the ESOP the remuneration committee can
grant options over shares in the company to employees of the Company Options are granted with a fixed exercise price equal
to the market price of the shares under cption at the date of grant The contractual ife of an option 15 10 years Awards under
the ESOP are open to all full ime employees except those who have had a material interest in the Group n the previous 12
months Options granted under the ESOP will become exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the
growth 1n earnings per share over that period exceeding the compounded annual growth in the Retail Prices Index (RPI) by 3%
per annum  Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model  No performance conditions were included 1n
the fair value calculations The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used n the calculation are as follows

2009
Number of employees 133
Options 1ssued since 7 November 2002 5,447,500
Vestuing penod (years) 3
Expected volatility 044
Option life (years) 3
Expected Iife (years} 3
Rusk free rate 4 3%
Expected dividends expressed as a dividend yield 41
Possibility of ceasing employment before vesting 20%
Expectations of meeting performance cntena 100%
Average fair value per option 023p

No options were tssued in the year ended 31 January 2010 and as a result the assumptions are the same as prior year 583,000
options were 1ssued in the year ending 31 January 2009 so the assumptions for 2009 are stated above

The expected volatility 1s based on historical volatility over the last five years The expected life 15 the average expected perod
to exercise The nsk free rate of return 15 the yield on zero-coupon UK government bonds of a term consistent with the
assumed option life A reconciliation of option movements over the year to 31 January 2010 ts shown below

2010 2009

Number Weighted Number Weighted

(000) Aaverage exercise (’000)  average exercise

price price

Qutstanding at 1 February 5,584 0.56 5,405 060
Granted - - 583 0138
Forfen (739) 0.61 (402) 032
Exercised (65) 0.24 - -
Outstanding at 31 January 4,780 0.36 5,586 0356
Exercisable at 31 January 3,397 0.27 3,306 045

Details of the expiry date of options outstanding at the year end 1s given in the Remuneration Report on page 22
The total charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £0 Im (2009 £0 2m), all of which related to
equity-settled share based payment transactions  After deferred tax the total charge was £0 1m (2009 £0 1m)

Page 45




19. Share Premium Account

2010 2009
£°000 £°000
At 1 February 8,412 8,208
Premium on shares i1ssued during the year under share option schemes 13 -
Acquisitions in the penod - 204
At 31 January 8,425 8,412
20. Retained Earnings
2010 2009
£°000 £ 000
At 1 February 24,107 18,963
Profit for the year 868 6,524
Employee share options and bonus plan 124 136
IFRS 2 Deferred Tax charge to equity 4 (147)
Acquisitions in the year {15) -
Dividends paid (1,485) (1,369)
At 31 January 23,603 24,107
21. Employees and Directors
Staff costs for the Group during the year 2010 2009
(including directors) £°000 £°000
Wages and salaries 32414 35,753
Social security costs 4,236 4,842
Other pension costs (note 22) 1,464 1,550
Share option charge and share based employee settlement 127 173
38,241 42,318
2010 UK Rest of Total
Average number of people employed World
(including executive directors)
Darectors 3 - 3
Sales 161 212 373
Adminmistrative 94 87 181
258 299 557
2009 UK Rest of Total
Average number of people employed World
(including executive directors)
Directors 3 - 3
Sales 194 230 424
Admuinistrative 104 89 193
301 319 620
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Key management compensation 2010 2009

£°000 £°000

Salanes and short-term employee benefits 4,069 3,776
Post-employment benefits 254 247
4,323 4,023

Key management 13 defined as key employees at divisional director level in the Group as well as both Executive and Non
Executive Board members

The 1ncrease 1n key management compensation mainly relates to exchange rate movements and a full year of key management
cost for Poland and Nash Technologies

Details of the remuneration of each Director, which form part of the audited financial statements, are set out 1n the
Remuneration Report on pages 18 to 22

22, Pensions

Harvey Nash has in place three pension schemes, the Harvey Nash plc Directors’ Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme, a
Group Personal Pension Plan provided by National Provident Institution, Legal and General, and Scotish Widows, and a
stakeholder scheme with Scottish Widows which had no participating members at the year end

The Harvey Nash plec Directors’® Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme (the ‘Scheme’) 1s a small self-admimistered scheme It
18 an exempt-approved scheme under Chapter | of Part XIV of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from the Company by trustees The current trustees are TFA Crawford, DC Higgins, DH Treacher
and Scottish Equitable which 1s the pensioner trustee The three individual trustees are the only members of the Scheme The
Company has the power to appoint individual trustees The retirement scheme 1s provided on a defined contribution basis The
contributions 1n the year were £l (2009 £mil)

The Group Personal Pension Plan (the ‘Plan’) 1s a defined coninbution scheme provided by National Provident Institution,
Legal and General, and Scottish Widows The Group's normal policy 1s to inwvite employees to join the Plan automatically on
completion of three years™ qualifying service, although semor employees may be mvited to join earher at the discretion of the
Directors The Group contributes 5% and the employee contributes 3% of the employee’s basic earmings (excluding bonuses)
to the Plan The Group’s total contribution to the Plan for the year to 31 January 2010, was £425311 (2009 £503,636)

The Group operates separate defined contribution schemes 1n all the overseas locations The Group’s total contribution to
defined contnibution schemes 1n overseas locations for the year to 31 January 2010, was £1,039,133 (2009 £1,046,364)

23, Related party transactions

Banking Cross Guarantees

The following companies have given security to Harvey Nash Group ple, the Company

The Group guarantees have been entered into by the Compames listed below and relate to any payment due under the Banking
agreement by any of the companies listed below

Name of company Secunty Security
Harvey Nash plc Group Guaranlee Debenture
Harvey Nash Resource Management Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Intenm Management In Information Technology Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Nash Direct Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Vertis Consulting Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Mortimer Spinks Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Techpartners International Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
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Harvey Nash Group EBT Limited Group Guarantee -

Impact Executives Holdings Limited Group Guarantee Debenture

Group Guarantee Debenture

Impact Executives Limited

Broadbay Networks Inc

Group Guarantee

24. Investments

Principal Subsidiaries and Branches

The details of the pnncipal subsidiary compames and branches owned directly or indirectly by the Company or Harvey Nash

plc as at 31 January 2010 were as follows

Name of company Country of Proportion of Principal activaty
incorporation and ordinary share
operation capital and
voting nghts

Harvey Nash AG Switzerland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash BV The Netherlands 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash GmbH Germany 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Offshore Development Centre Branch - Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash plc England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash SA France 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives Ltd England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Mortumer Spinks Limited England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Inc Us 100% Recruitment consultancy
Rescon Limited Ireland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Alumm AB Sweden 100% Recruitment consultancy
SilkRoad BVI Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash Consulting (Scotland) Limmted Scotland 70% Recruitment consultancy
TechDhscovery us 56 6% Software development
Fila & Myszel Associates Sp Poland 75% Recruitment consultancy

All subsidiary companies are consolidated

The results for Harvey Nash Consulting (Scotland) Limited and Fila & Myszel Associates Sp are not considered matenal 1o the
Group so0 no minonty nterest has been recogmised

The directors belteve that the book value of investments 1s supported by thewr underlying net assets

25 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group’s financial instruments compnse cash, bank overdraft, and vanious items such as trade debtors, trade creditors and
provisions that arise directly from its operations The fair value of financial assets and habilities 1s approximately equal to their
book values

Additional disclosures are set out in the accounting policies relating to nisk management An explanation of the role that

financial instruments have had dunng the year in the management of the Group’s funding liquidity and foreign exchange 1s
provided on page 35 of the Annual Report
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In accordance with 1AS 39, “Financial instruments Recognition and measurement’, the Group has reviewed all contracts and
confirmed that none contain embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for 1f they do not meet certain
requirements set out in the standard There were no embedded derivatives at 31 January 2010

The Group held no denvative financial instruments at 31 January 2010 (2009 none) requinng to be fair valued

Borrowing facilities

The Group had the following commutted facilities available at 31 January 1n respect of an overdraft with a maximum facihty of
£2 Om at 31 January 2010 (2009 £2 Om)

The Group also has invoice discounting facilities for working capital in the UK of £12 Om and in the Netherlands of €18 Om
The overdraft expires within one year and the invoice discounting facilities are avaitable on a rolling 12 month basis

All conditions precedent to the overdraft and invoice discounting were met at 31 January 2010 and 31 January 2009

Undrawn borrowing facilities Floating 2010 2009
Fixed rate rate Total Total
000 *000 ‘000 *000
Overdraft £ - 1,687 1,687 591
Invoice discounting facilities - UK £ - 5,313 5,300 7,717
Invoice discounting facilities - Netherlands € - 18,000 18,000 18,000
26. Share based payments
2010 2009
£°000 £°000
Share based payments - IFRS 2 charge 127 173
127 173

27. Dividends

The dividends paid 1n the year end January 2010 were £1 5m (2009 £1 4m)

The proposed final dividend of £1 Om (1 35p per share) 15 subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
on 24 June 2010 (2009 1 2p per share amounting to £0 9m) and has not been included as a hability at 31 January 2010

2010
£°000
Final dividend for year end January 2009 of 1 2p per share 869
Intenm dividend for year end January 2010 of ¢ 85p per share 616
1,485
Proposed final dividend for year end January 2010 of 1 35p per share 979
28 Non recurring items
Non-recurring items have been disclosed separately to give a clearer presentation of the Group’s results  They relate to
restructuring costs and include the costs of redundancy and onerous property leases
2010 2009
£°000 £°000
Non-recurning 1tems (2,818) -
(2,818) -

Page 49







29, Provisions

Provisions relate to the costs of redundancy and two onerous property leases which run to December 2011 and September 2013
respectively

2010

£°000

At 1 February -

Charge 1n the year 783

At 31 January 783
£359k will fall due within one year and £424k will be payable after more than one year

30. Adjusted profit attributable to shareholders

2010 2009

£ 7000 £°000

Profit attributable to shareholders 795 6,524

Non - recurnng items 2,818 -

Estimated tax on non-recurnng items (825) -

Adjusted Profit attnbutable to shareholders 2,788 6,524

31. Post balance sheet events

On 29 Apnl 2010, Harvey Nash Group plc acquired 50 1% m Bjerke & Luther for an aggregate consideration of Norwegian
Kroner 18 5m (approximately £2 1 million) In the year ended 31 December 2009, Bjerke & Luther reported an audited profit
before taxation of approxamately NOK 3 3 mullion (approximately £0 4 million), a turnover of approximately NOK 19 9 mill:on
(approximately £2 2 milhion) and as at 31 December 2009 had gross assets of NOK 8 8 mullion (approximately £1 0 million)
Bjerke & Luther had net assets of NOK 3 2 mullion (approximately £0 4m} on acquisiton Due to the timing of the
acquisition, the allocation of the purchase price has not been completed
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Financial statements for the Parent Company
Harvey Nash Group pic, the Company
Under UK GAAP
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Independent Auditors’ report to the Members of Harvey Nash Group plc

We have auduted the parent company financial statements of Harvey Nash Group ple for the year ended 31 January 2010 which
comprise the Balance Sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in their preparation
15 apphicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully i the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement set out on page 23, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our
responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body n accordance wath
Secuions 495 to 497 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, in giving these opintons, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the zudit of the firancial statements

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinien the parent company financial statements
e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 January 2010,
* have been properly prepared 1n accordance with Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
e have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

s the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

e the information given 1n the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the parent company financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f, in
our opinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited by us, or

*  the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and retumns, or

s  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we requure for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc for the year ended 31 January 2010

Nigel Reynolds

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

18 May 2010
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Company Balance Sheet
as at 31 January 2010

2010 2009
£°000 £7000
Notes
Fixed assets
Investments 3 52,244 52,117
52,117
Current assets
Debtors 4 17,540 15,208
Cash at bank - 146
17,540 15,354
Creditors due within one year 5 (1,480) (31
Net current assets 16,060 15,323
Total assets less current habilities 68,304 67,440
Creditors due after more than one year 6 (11,046) (13,643)
Net assets 57,258 53,797
Capital and reserves
Share capital 7 3,673 3,669
Shares to be 1ssued 8 49 36
Share premium account 8 8,425 8,412
Capital contribution 8 20,600 20,000
Other reserves 8 13,794 13,667
Profit and loss account 8 11,317 7,963
Equity shareholders’ funds 9 57,258 53,797

The financial statements on pages 53 to 58 were approved by the Board on 18 May 2010 and signed on 1its behalf by

Company Number 03320790

@’““&“V—'
Ian Kirkpatrick

Chairman

CE)—%CL (WP 2

Richard Ashcroft
Group Finance Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis, under the histonical cost convention, and 1n accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom The principal accounting policies,
which have been apphed consistently throughout the year, are set out below

As allowed by S408 Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account 15 presented 1n respect of the parent company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption avatlable to parent compantes under paragraph 3C of FRS 25 “Financial
Instruments Disclosure and Presentation” not to provide the information otherwise required by paragraphs 51 to 95 of the
standard, as the Group’s consolidated financial statements, in which the Company 1s included, provides equivalent disclosures
under IFRS 7 “Financial instruments Disclosures”

2 Accounting Policies

(a) Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated n foreign currencies are translated into sterhing at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet date and any
differences arising are taken to the profit and loss account

(b) Taxation

Deferred taxation 1s provided 1n full for matenal iming differences except where recoverability of a deferred tax asset 1s
considered to be remote 1n the foreseeable future Deferred tax balances are not discounted unless the effects are considered to
be material to the Company’s results

(c) Investments
Investments held as fixed assets are shown at cost less provision for impairment Impairment reviews are conducted annually

{d) Related Party Transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 3(c) from the provisions of FRS8, ‘Related Party
Disclosures’, on the grounds that 1t 1s wholly owned subsidiary of a group headed by Harvey Nash Group ple, whose accounts
are publicly available

(e) Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the
penod 1n which the dividends are approved by the Company’s sharcholders Interim dividends are recogmised when paid
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3 Investments

Fixed asset investments 2010 2009
£ °000 £°000

Shares 1n group undertakings

At | February 52,117 51,819
Increase — share-based payments 127 173
Additions - 125
At 31 January 52,244 52,117

The carrying value of the investments was tested against discounted future cash flows during the year The forecasts were based
on pre-tax cash flows derrved from approved budgets for the 2010-2011 financial year Management beheve the forecasts are
reasonably achievable Where the future cash flows could not support the carrying value an umpairment was recogmsed

Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

The details of the principal subsidiary companies and branches owned directly or indirectly by The Company or Harvey Nash
plc as at 31 January 2010 were as follows

Name of company Country of Proportion of Principal activity
incorporation and ordinary share
operation capital and
voting rights

Harvey Nash AG Switzerland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash BV The Netherlands 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash GmbH Germany 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash NV Belgium 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Offshore Development Centre Branch - Vietnam 100% Software development
Harvey Nash plc England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash SA France 100% Recnutment consultancy
Impact Executives Ltd England 100% Recruitment consultancy
Mortimer Spinks Limited England 100% Recrnuitment consultancy
Alumni AB Sweden 100% Recrutment consultancy
SilkRoad Vietnam 100% Software development
Rescon IT Limited Ireland 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Inc us 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Consulting (Scotland) Limited Scotland 70% Recrurtment consultancy
Fila & Myszel Associates Sp Poland 5% Recraitment consultancy
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4 Debtors

2010 2009
£°000 £000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 17,540 15,208

Interest 1s charged al market rate on intercompany funding balances in accordance with formal loan agreements between the
parties

5. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year

2010 2009
£:000 £000
Bank overdraft 1,480 -
Deferred consideration - 31
1,480 31

6. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due After More Than One Year
2010 2009
£7000 £000
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 11,027 13,622
Deferred consideration 19 21
11,046 13,643

Interest 15 charged on intercompany funding balances in accordance with formal loan agreements between the parties

7. Share Capital

2010 2009
£°000 £000
Authorised
110,000,000 (2009 110,000,000) ordinary shares of 5p each 5,500 5,500
Allotted and fully paid
73,450,393 ordinary shares of 5p each (2009 73,385,393) 3,673 3,669

A reconciliation of movements 1n share capital 1s presented in note 17 of the consolidated accounts of Harvey Nash Group plc
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8. Reserves

Share Share  Shares Capatal Other Profit Total
capital premium to be Contribution reserves and loss equity
issued account
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Balance at
As at 1 February 2009 3,669 8,412 86 20,000 13,667 7,963 53,797
Employee share option and
bonus plan 4 13 - - 127 - 144
Acquusitions in the period - - ¥ - - - 37
Dividends paid - - - - - (1,485) (1,485)
Profit for the year - - - - - 6,091 6,091
Exchange movements - - - - - (1,252)  (1,252)
31 January 2010 3,673 8,425 49 20,000 13,794 11,317 57,258

The share premium reserve comprises share premum on the 1ssued share capital

The shares to be 1ssued compnise the outstanding liabilities relating to the deferred consideration for the acquisition of Silkroad

Systems Limited

The capital contribution reserve was created on flotation

The other reserves represents share premium on share capital 1ssued 1n relation to the purchase of certain acquisitions

The dividends received relate to dividends paid from Harvey Nash ple and Harvey Nash Ireland Ltd

9, Reconciliation of movement in sharcholders’ funds

2010 2009

£°000 £000

Profit for the year 6,091 3,982
Dividends paid {1,485) {1,369)
Exchange (loss) / gain (1,252) 3,271
Issued share capital (including premium}) 17 251
Shares to be 1ssued (37 (1,745)
Employee share option charge 127 173
Net increase 1n shareholders’ funds 3,461 4,563
Opening shareholders’ funds 53,797 46,234
Closing equity shareholders® funds 57,258 53,797

10. Profit Attributed to the Parent Company

The profit for the year ended 31 January 2010 in the financial statements of Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company, was £6 09m
(2009 £398m) As allowed by 5408 Compames Act 2006, no profit and loss account 1s presented in respect of the parent

company
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11. Employees and Directors

Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company employed no staff in the year (2009 mil), other than directors
Amounts paid by Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company in respect of Directors in the year was mi (2009 mil)
See note 21 in Harvey Nash Group plc accounts for details of the Directors remuneration from the Group

12 Related party transactions

The following compames have given secunty to Harvey Nash Group plc, the Company

Name of company Secunty Security
Harvey Nash plc Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Resource Management Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Interim Management In Information Technology Group Guarantee Debenture
Limited

Nash Direct Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Vertis Consulting Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Mortimer Spinks Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Techpartners International Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Harvey Nash Group EBT Limited Group Guarantee -
Impact Executives Holdings Limuted Group Guarantee Debenture
Impact Executives Limited Group Guarantee Debenture
Broadbay Networks Inc Group Guarantee -

13, Post balance sheet events

On 29 Apnl 2010, Harvey Nash Group plc acquired 50 1% m Bjerke & Luther for an aggregate consideration of Norwegian
Kroner 18 5m (approximately £2 1 mulhion) In the year ended 31 December 2009, Bjerke & Luther reported an audited profit
before taxauon of approximately NOK 3 3 nulhion (approximately £0 4 million), a turnover of approximately NOK 19 9 million
(approximately £2 2 million) and as at 31 December 2009 had gross assets of NOK 8 8 mullion (approximately £1 0 million)
Bjerke & Luther had net assets of NOK 3 2 muliton (approximately £0 4m} on acquisitton Due to the timing of the
acquisition, the allocation of the purchase price has not been completed
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